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D/ACCEPTED
Marlene H. Dortch FILE
Federal Communications Commission MAR 2 72009
Office of the Secretary Federal Communications Commission
445 12th Street, SW Office of the Secretary

Washington, DC 20554
Re: Dockets 96-45 and 97-21: USAC 2008 Annual Report to the FCC and Congress
Dear Ms. Dortch:

I am pleased to provide you with a copy of the Universal Service Administrative Company’s (USAC’s)
2008 Annual Report. This annual report highlights USAC’s accomplishments in 2008 and reports on
USAC’s financial standing.

USAC submits its annual report to the Federal Communications Commission (FCC) and Congress in
accordance with 47 C.F.R. 54.702(g), which requires USAC to report on its operations, activities, and
accomplishments for the prior year, including information about participation in each of the universal
service programs and administrative action intended to ensure program integrity. Pursuant to FCC rules,
USAC has consulted with FCC staff to determine the scope and content of the annual report.

We want to thank you for providing USAC with the opportunity to assist the Commission in
accomplishing its goal of providing universal service to the nation’s telecommunications consumers.

If you have any questions concerning this annual report, please feel free to contact me at (202) 263-1605
or Eric Iversen, Director of External Relations, at (202) 263-1616.

Sincerely,

D. Scott Barash
Acting Chief Executive Officer
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USAC administers the Universal Sarvice Fund, providing communities
ait across America with affordabie access to telecommunications seivices
through the USF's four programs

Universal Service Administrative Company
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he Universal Service Administrative
Company (USAC) is an independent,
not-for-profit corporation designated as

the administrator of the

federal

Universal Service Fund (USKF) by the
Federal Communications Commission (FCC).

LUSAC &
High Cost, Low Income, Rural Health Care, anc Schools and Libraries,
vwhich are gedicated 10 ensurng thal all Americans racsive the benglis
¢f affordanie and eficient access 16 telccommunications and nfor

services. Workang ciosaly with the FCT and our siakeholders,

USAC hss neloed make universal service possible.

In addition i¢ biling, coliscting. ang dishursing &li universal service
funds, USAC congdkicls cutreach and ecucation activities for program
stakenoiders. Thiough rigorous internal controls and by performi
g USF orograms. bensiiciares, contriguiors,
and services providers, USAC has bean vigilant in protecting the USF
from potential waste, fraud, and abuse
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many new di

ilitate cversight. You'li read about fhem in this report.
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dministers the Universal Service Func and the four Universal Service programs

USAC administers
the USF and manages
its four programs—
High Cost,

Low Income,
Rural Health Care,
and Schools and

Libraries—
as required by
the 1996
Telecommunications
Act and regulations
and orders issued
by the FCC.




pmeversal SeTN LT administratiye company

USAC faced many challenges in 2008. Amid considerable
activity on the universal service front and many changes
to the four Universal Service Fund (USIT) programs, USAC
continued to operate with responsiveness and efficiency.
USAC successtully implemented FCC policy and audit
initiatives, made substantial operational charnges in areas sach
as procurement and information technology, and enhanced its
administrative procedures and internal controls. We are
}lap])_y [0 report that USAC has commenced its second

o~

decade of service as the USEF administrator with a vear of

.

significant accomplishment,

I 2008 the FOC chalienaed LSAC to make s

niable 1o USE stakshalders ant the Comm

Dr. Brian L. Talbott, ./ o o/ e Do desigried 1o promate usefil oversighl

and entuhcsd rogram C--,_,--,.',-:,, 13

Friom retraining or hiring siait Lo reprotiamming autemated syatems to wsponding 1 cug-

omers” nesds lo daveloging and mpiementing new proceduss, USAG hilitkd ts many and
ta.ran a operahonz! dilies racihsul Hee vear

Camonstiating- arcaumitatily and further salecuarcing e misstity of ha USF llr‘,r| (lay many nf

'I’-‘;“im = 2 w.(j "':';;: manaued the ficldwnrk and dak neter he FOG

Ofilea af I.-.' 0 ngral (1G] UST audit program thal grew 7t ZI08.
USAC implemente Ij y. ot admini v Ineasuas and ¢ alas!, prevent,
And 1educe Improper p_i rr.L'.u'J LISAC craatad & robust '__!I.'_l-.."ln_-l namplair l 3nc| reporting
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f extended fs

system In a limely and elfective mannar At FOU directic
performance, began (he process o reviawing its intemal cont :
checks and baldnces to its procurement bperalions USAC pariul el Ihese activites prafessic
ally and reiighly, and within the limeframes estahlished by the FCC

nge o

In the USF prograrn areas—High Gost, Low Incorie, Rilial Health Care, ared Schonls and Librariss—
and tor coritributors 1o the fund. USAC realstared advances frm Genefited parlicipants in mahy
ways LISAC worked cinsely thraughout the yedr on an indi
yidua! basis with each particlpant In e Rurdl Health Care
Pllot Program o align tair plans and actvities with pro-
aram requirements: In the High Cost Program, USAC
mplementad numeraus FCC orders, including an interim
lunding cap on compelitve gigible elacommunicalion

from the Criawman and Acting CEO s
g tarriers. Schools and Libvanes Progmm funding went aut
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USAC’s administrative
expense rate of 2.4%
of USF disbursements
is significantly lower
than the largest U.S.
charitable organizations and
foundations, as well as
the overwhelming majority
of federal agencies
that make grants,
distribute subsidies,
or manage entitlement
programs.




BILLIONS OF DOLLARS

MILLIONS OF DOLLARS

HWmiversal et ee s PR m i n st rative company

USAC administers the USF and the four universal service
support programs it funds—High Cost, Low Income,
Rural Health Care, and Schools and Libraries—as required
by the 1996 Telecommunications Act and regulations
and orders issued by the FCC. Consumers in remote or
rural areas, low-income consumers, rural health care
providers, and public and private schools and public
libraries, are eligible to receive the benefit of these programs.

High Cost Program

Low Income Program
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The High Cost Program ensures that consumers
across the country have access to and pay rates tor
telecommunications services that are reasonably com-
parable to services provided and rates paid in urban
areas. In 2008, USAC staft quickly and eftectively
implemented new FCC rules while educating pro-
gram participants.

i the sprngy, the FCC mandated art interim cap on competitive aligible wlacammuri-

catiens caniers {ETCs), limiting annual USF suppart USAC stall continues to work
dgiligently 1o ensure a smoofh fransition to the new operating procedure.

demonst ating

responsiveness

The brand naw Online Form 525 flling feature provides conipelitive
ETCs with an nasy-to-use interiace, time sfiimeney, and the abifity to
cotlfitm payment accuracy.

in conjunclion with the Low Income Program, USAC stall conductzd four regional
fraining sessions for £TCs in the areas of program 11es, Sup pmi pugl ent calculation, and
audit preparation. USAC also presented overviews of the company, the High Cos! and
Low Income programs, and specific guidance on cerliications &nd best practices.
These well attended events were held between May and November in Washington,
DC, Chicago, Denver, and Dallas.

lhe

progran




- The USAC

always working
y help carriers
_serve consumers
~ in remote areas,
giving them access
to important
. telecommunications
services.
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The Low Income Program helps eligible low-income
consumers establish and maintain telephone service
through discounted services. In 2008, the Low Income
Program expanded its outreach to include a greater focus
on program rules, guidelines, and best practices while
continuing efforts to increase Lifeline participation.

USAC worked closely ¢ afe ulllity commissiyns, health and human services agen-
CIeEs, -‘."'-j E1LS 10 devise state-specific strateqies 1o Increase program p wticinatinn. LSAC
also ex| -'”‘ "1 the AARP annual convention in Washington, DC | attended he National
Cor qress of Ametican Indians Conlerence, and spoke at svents atfended by the
Clecommunicalions and social service commutities in order 1 grease Litaling participation

USAC idantifind states with estimaled Lifsline parti v rates thal fell below 10%

Outieach 1o those slates included web-based liaining sessions for ETI

(ll.l{ll“’

'twork

ihe High Cost and Low Incoine Divisiun conducted regional tamlig
USAC presented overviews of the ornanizatian, the High Cost and
Low Income prograins, as we!l as specific guidance on certifications,
bes! practices, ang dudits,

USAC received a very favorable response from participants who also expressed
interesl in attending future USAC events, The High Cost and Low Income programs
will continue fo focus on education initiatives that promote compliance with FCC
rules and reguiations.

the

program




is continuousi
working
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The Rural Health Care Program provides reduced
rates to rural health care providers for telecommuni-
cations and Internet services necessary for the provision
of health care. In 2008, USAC’s Rural Health Care
Program kicked off the FCC's $417 million Rural
Health Care Pilot Program while simultane-

ously hitting record funding numbers and
participation rates in the regular program.

In mid-Jdanuary, USAC created traming matendls, launched a web
site, and hosted two tramine se ss.uns ' t'na 1ore fhan 61 statewice
or regiona’ breadband el 1 networks ;."'-.-"fr patng in the new

Pilct Program.,

launching
program

For Funding Year 20017, which ended June 30, 2008, the regular piogram reazhat
[l o L Nl §

new records. 3.564 FCC Form 465, the form seeking funding, and 6,583 funding requests
from 2,871 health care providers (HCPs),

USAC Increased its targeted e-mail outreach to HCPs in the spring of 2008 by sending
due date reminders and individual HCP stalus e-mails. As a result, 79% of HCPs that
fitadt initial forms followed through completing all forms—hie lighest nercentage ever.

USAC participated in conference panels, hosted vendor booths al industry trade shows,

and conducted video conferences v a continuing effori fo Increase par ‘.!"‘I,Oa!u“.] rales and
teach program rules

progiam

10



The I'-:'_{ural
_Health Care

‘providers and
- patients,
allowing people
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The Schools and Libraries Program provides dis-
counts to help schools and libraries in every US. state
and territory receive affordable telecommunications
and Internet access. In 2008, the program achieved
faster processing times and increased accuracy. In fact,
USAC was faster in 2008 than in any previous year at
issuing funding commitment decisions, sending out
invoices, and distributing support payments.

To ensure accurdcy. USAL canfinued promoting anline farm submission
- . . ' k!‘ ,.E:.I..JI '_\,'|“|'-j:'-“' ._._‘ , ':‘_-' |—Irv-\ ]' i C‘rr _. "'. 15 .I:_,u!.'wt: ;",,:'.;.:”E ,.L" u'"-bi D
stratenies 1o reduce wasty, frau, and
ed effort 10 teach applcarts anm saivice providers about audit pro-
ceiures and program miles. As 2 resull, the numbsr of appeals f

r. | : Fupding Yij-ll.’ 2007 1zached an all .'u 12 low,
( ur1111.lt'11~t-m cesstul ]

LSAL conducted nine trainmag sessians for approximately 1,600 slakeholders. The
ons covered progeam tules, wi-denth presentations on audits, and a Beginnar s
Smuw that w m..\mly attended by many newcomers to the program

1} ISE

. It also mads a coneslt-

fhe program conducted 228 "Helping Applicants to Succeed" {(HATS) visits lo appl
cants, which revided personal guidance through the application process.,

Approximately 25,000 program participants receive & weskly News Erigl e mall,
which contains information on deadlines, program tips. anl rules

the

progeam

12



The Schools
and Libraries
Program team is
dedicated to
providing schools
and libraries
with funding for
~communications
:" technology
| vital to success
in the
21st Century,

13
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This past year, USAC’s Finance Division featured two
significant accomplishments—adapting to a changing
mpm'ling environment and improy ing customer service

to USF participants and contributors.

The d '5"'| n impiemented an ""m’;f | 2007 FOC Orger that estalilshad new fees for 14te-
fling contributors: Titese con nplex calculalions called on the r-'..:!",e Division to make
switt and sianificart char Mes o 1ts u|-||-".. 5 accounti i S:-".'ll‘JhiS. fetrdin the clistomel

sarvice team, and undariake a massive oulreach program to teach contiibutors aonu! the

B requirements and fesas.

In Febituary 2008, risw requiremal ‘s set fortly in a Memorandum of Understanding
hetw "'"H' AL and the FEC aikn recuired the division to establish a thrmalizeld program
O mpemenl "' ' C( 'Ilu U,_.- over USI'.'.. Ull"'.].|-.=-l-‘.v CONSISIEN] W nthe e n'i‘_.'_ M |.'§ of

me White House Office of Management and Budue! Key processes and procedures
were dglined and documentsd, and appropnate controls were identitied @nd testad

Vi
s llxlng ¢ lmm €

L“lLl

IMproying
service

Lastly, the raie of callers that dropped off due to wail limes
declined from 2.9‘23 in 2006 to 2.2% in 2007, and down 10
0.87% last year—much lower thar the indushy standarc of 4%.
This is working In part because Customier Service I8 danswering
calls in a more timely manner, and a new telaphone directory posted

lo USAC’s website haips customers get through to the right people for their
questions—a feature that will continue into 2009.

W
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USAC's Information Technology (IT) shop was very
busy during 2008 upgrading technology infrastructure,

improving online tools, implementing internal systems
changes, and ensuring that USAC had adequate storage

and backup facilities for its aperations,

Mis year, USAC deployed its second collocation iata center fa in narthern Yimginia,
ot mure space needed Io support the hosting of all four USF proorams In addition, this
center provides a disast "'covery location for applications host % I its first cL, lo-
cation sile Irowde a more robust IT environment lor supparting e USF whille low-

gling | -,.,..,'.,.m costs over Lime,

= e\ ll":_J[JIlle‘[}[.~; and

IT also created & Hle repository fur USAC's permarent docu-
ments using a document mmanagemeant system that complies
with federal requlations for file storage and management. In atdi-

livn, USAC migrated une of its most critical financial sysiems—the
Disbursement Aggregation System——from outdated technologics to a stable technical
environment that considerably reduced the risk of mallunctions that could affect the
collection and distribution of USF support

Other projects include helping USAC’s IT vendors migrate the Rural Health Care Program
and Schools and Libraries Program [T infrastructure and operations to a USAC data cenler
in northern Virginia; automation of USF contributor billing late payment and iate filing fees
confarming to FCC rule changes in 2007, and bulk certificaticn for contributor Form 499,
which enables contnbutors o certify muitiple forms in a single filing. Many companies now
use the online system ratner than sending in paper forms, which increases acclracy,
reduces potential data entry errors by USAC staff, and decreases precessing costs.

better tools
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USACSs Internal Audit Division (IAD) implemented
several new initiatives in 2008 to expand its education
and outreach, to improve its efficiency in conducting
program audits, and to increase its responsiveness for
managing the large FCC Office of Inspector General
(OIG) audit program that included nearly 700 audits

of program beneficiaries and fund contributors.

HSAC also participated in & number of association meetings o promale awdieness of
program rules. comphance requiremeris, and wd.! L»lk,-:"‘-uduul activilies The presenta-
linfis wire uskd to educats polential dudit reciplents about audit expectations ani
requiraments and te suppart USAC's elforts to reduce wasts, fraud. and abuse in the LISE

impleme ntm“ new procedures

“increased
etficiencies

IAD Also took several steps (o inprove IS audit Wacking for
arge numbers of FCC CIG audits, IAD created a central data
: management tool to identify f:ndln:J; and their @ssociated causes
N RS for the tirst time since the beginnirg of the audil program and used
a rlata warehouse to store eudit records This resulted in the ghility to link

audit activity to targeted outreach canducted by the four [ISF programs.

The division also increased Its tidlning for the firms conducling the FCC OIG audits on
USAC's behail For Round 3 of the audits in late 2008, the scope of audits was widened
by the OIG, and USAC responded by retaning more USF-experienced firms and increasing
Ikeir case load while limiling the case load of less experienced firms.

LSAC held several training sessions at its offices for auditors on High Cost Program and

Schoois and Libranes Program rules. In addition, the training was designed 1o encourage

contracted auditors to treat audit recipients in a fair and respectiul manner based on
feedback received frem Reund 2 audit recipients. Nearly
700 contracted auditors are performing field work for
Round 3 audits.

16
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universal service

adminisctrative

USAC is required to provide the FCC with data and performance

information on a quarterly basis pursuant to a memorandum

of understanding signed in September 2008. USAC submits per-

formance information on its administration of the Universal Service

Fund as well as the four USF programs.

USF CONTRIBUTOR STATISTICS
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s USAC COMPLAINT STATISTICS
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RURAL HEaLTH CARE APPLICATIONS BY TYPE AND FUNDING YEAR
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SCHOOLS & LIBRARIES APPLICATIONS STATISTICS

45 000
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30.00¢
26,000
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5.600
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ieg for specilieg uhng vear
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Management Discussion & Analysis - 2008

The FCC, in two orders in CC Docket Nos. 96-15 and 97-21, released May 8, 1997

and November 20, 1995, respectively, determined that the Universal Service

Administrative Company (USAC) should serve as the permanent administrator

of the Universal Service Fund (USF) and the high cost, low income, rural

health care, and schools and libraries universal service support programs,

collectively referred to as the “Support Prograns,” established pursuant to Section

251 of the Communications Act of 1934, as amended. USAC was incorporated as

an independent not-for-profit company in 1997. The USAC Board of Directors

consists of independent directors representing a cross-section of telecom-

munications industry representatives who are stakeholders in the USF

The USF and the Support Programs exist
to achieve the goals of Section 254 by
promoting the avallability of quality sorvices
at just, reasonahte, and affordable rales;
ncreasing access 10 advanced felecommu-
nicalions services lhroughout 1he nation;
advancing the avalabilly of such services
to all consumers, including those i low-
rsceme, rural. insular, and high cost areas
dt rates that are reasonably comparable (o
those charged n urban areas, and prowding
schaols, heatth care providers, and libranes
access 10 advanced telecommunications
SEMVICES,

The migsion of USAC 1S to cfficicntly and
effectively administer the USF and the
Support Programs in accordance with
FCC oversight by

® Collecting and disbursing funds,

& Ersunng fund integnty and
accountability, and

® Communicating with stakeholders

USAC nerforms biling, collection, and dis-
bursement functions for all of the Support

Programs. USAC also collcels information
about confributing entities and end-user
telecommunicatrans revenues, ang sub-
mits projections of demand, admmisirative
expenses for the Support Programs, and

quarterly unversal service contibution data
to the FCC

The functions of USAC also include, but
are not imited to; devclopment of apolica-
tions and assocated instructions as needed
for the Support Programs, administering
the apphcation process © ensure compli-
ance with FCC rules and requlations, creat
g and maintaining a websitc and related
pperational nfrastructure for such process-
es, performing outreach and public edu
cation functions; authorzing audits of
telecommumeations carriers, schools,
fibraries. and rural health care providers,
and development and implementation of
other funclions unigue to the Support
IPrograms

Funds collected by USAC from required
contributors to the USF ars restrcted as to
their ntended wse related o he Suppart
Programs discussed above Accordingly,
such funds have been reflected as assets
held for the Federal USF and liabllities
related 1o assets held tor the Federal USF in
the accompanying statements of financial
positon, Available funds are mantaned
and invested by USAC. Unaudited financiat
data for 2008 have been presented for
comparative and discussion purposes only,

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL DATA

The accompanying unaudited fnancial
staterments and @bles are the responsibilty
of USAC managerrent and roflect all nec-
essary adiustments and reclassifications
needed for far presentation of the peliod
presented, The resulls for the year ended
December 37, 2008 are not considerad 1o
be final unhl tho 2008 financial statement
audit 1s completed by our ndependent
auditors These unaudited fnancial state-
ments and fables should be used 10 con-
junction with the audited financial state-
ments and the notes thereto for the years
cnded December 31, 2007 and 2006
inclided herein

Expenditures by the USF have continued
to grow In continuing 1o serve its missian,
USAC has been growing as a cormpany.
Cver e past hree years, USAC increased
Its staff size to meet the Increasing
demands of administering the USF and the
Support Programs, For the years cnded
December 31, 2006 and 2007, USAC
employed a tofal of 164 and 196 employess,
respectively, for an increase of 20% At
Decamber 31, 2008, employses totaled
194, Tor a decrease of 1% over 2007,
The overall staffing increase over the past
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o

runaydiied; al Decembar 31, 2007, ion an ingrease of
$12,174 000, o 50% At December 31,
2008, projacied ganarg! ang adminis
rative expenses are estimaied o be
362,070,000, for an incraase over 2C07
spending of $62.446,0C0. or 171%. The
increase from 2007 1o 2008 15 predom
nanily due 1o costs associated with
implementing & isroe-scale USF audit
program as directed by ine FCC Office of
Inspector Generai

SCHOOLS
& LIBRARIES -
40535 paymenls . 52%

Lasty Support Program condaciual expenses
1% have seen & modest ncrease over (he past
BURAL Y o X three vears For the vears ending Decsmbe:
HEALTH CARE L L AN 31, 2008 and 2007, Supoort Prograr
573 paymenis T7i063 ey contractuz! expenses ware $46.659,000
Hicu Cost and $47.468.000. respechively, ior an
18.241 gayments increase of $808.000, or 17%. Dunag 2008,
Sugport Program contractual expenses
TOTAL: 77 612 paymenss increased o an estimaied 48 507,000
for an incraase ot $1,306,000 or 2.2%

HYBS y2ars IS due. iniarge part o 2008 ,{%CCOU nts Recel\;abie

sxganded sudit and Information i o
Technciogy 17} mitianves, (he expansion by Receivable Type

of the axternal relations teem 16 CoSTd) Ynaveited in lhoysanos}
nata education and commurcaton aiforis
acioss e progrems; and e additon of an _ COMMITMENT
expenencet purchasing manager fo oan- - ADJUSTMENTS
raiize ana cocrdinate USAC'S procure- OPERATING AR~ — §116.055

ment activities, theredy making sigaificant $675431 e

IMBIovements 10 e procuiement

R
r0Cess

Acortingly. parsonnat 0osis neve increased 29

ovel In@ past free years as wed. For 1e Pay D A
yzers entied December 3% 2006 znd 2007, PRE-PETITION : P b - &&WE?TARLAM

parsonngl costs were $15.893,00C and BANKRUPTCYAR — — - 922729

$18017.000, respectively, representng 396 941 ;

. an ncrease 2 13%. For the year endeg DratT COLLECTION
December 31, 2008, oroiacted perseniel [MPROVEMENT ACT
cosis are approximately 20,115,000, 181587

inr an incma ~uer 2007 enerding o
ok 297 %9 ong & TOTAL: $1.023133
32088000 0: 12% Persannsi costs
nciude wages, emploves benelis, ang
corporaie pay ol tax havlites. At Dgoemper 31, 2008 Accounis Heosivasle scopenied br 15 2% or ot agsels down kom 17 3% at December 31
2007 The baiance wr Accounts Recaivaie of $1.0237133 s & 5 7% werease over ite Opcemasr 31 2007 Accounis
Qverall general and adminisiaive expanses Recaghie haince of $G57107 The chart 2bave fepesonls the (ilferent COMUONBNIS Of ALcounts Recsivatie 2t

wicreased from $24,450.000 at December | Deoemaer 1 A%




2008 Use of Administrative
Resources by Support Programs
iUnaudited  in

thuusands)

SCHOOLS
& LIBRARIES
$102346

‘Hign Cost
$55,246

Y e
S% 4 ow INCOME

RuraL S

HeALTH CARE -~

£8 145
TOTAL: $170.224

Ttie wogy abovs disiiag e gse of gll aaminishaties resources lor 2008 i ferms 0! Supooi ogean wsage These fgures
S verrease 0 e ACTIISHING 18S0WOES 1S6¢ Oy M Scnoots an (ivares Program. and 8 1 3% increase
i FESOcEs LS by e Hign Cast Progren gver 2007 Percendsges of aornisiaine 0osts Lsed by ins Low
incomie anet Rurit Healih Care Progiams ramained iglatively urchanged trom 2067

18ES:

frad

2008 Average Monthly Invoices
by Primary Carrier Type

tUnauclied)

LocaL
EXCHANGE
CARRIERS:

1125

Torl RESELLERS: 556

COMPETITIVE
ACCESS
PROVIDERS: 887

CELLULAR
—— PROVIDERS: 398

{THERS:
608 — INTEREXCHANGE
CARRIERS: 247

ToraL: 2917 - INTERCONNECTED VOIP: 200

Contrmtions 2008 vea: q Revev-—in 2005, the USAL Riance Billng Team processer 100% of the apooxamaiey
A7 00 contrtulos mvpices on te The cnarl ghave Jepicis 19e aomonmats 2068 breakaove of monthyy mvoices by
canmier o

administraiive company

Supgort Program convaciual expensas
inciuge direct program agminiskaiion
tags and contract changss i tose
adminisiraton: fees

The overall purgose of e noreased
staffing and ancilary cosls noied above
fo ensure that USAC is able o continually
improve s efiiciency ang effectivaness as
administraior of the USF ang the Suppod
Pragrams. in 2008, USAC's efioris
demonsireied s finencial relabilily and
integaty and helped 1o establish USAC as a
pariner with the FOC 1o provide acowrsie.
ey, and reliable fingncigl dala reisied [0
USAG, the USF and the Supgport Programs
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Statement of Financial Position of USAC

as of December 31, 2008
sunautited + in thousands)

. 2008

ASEITE

Corent Al

Gash 3 19423

Prepaad oxpensas dnd olher curenl ssEeks T

Arnple helr for tpe Vedea LSF 7,505,504
Total current assets £,310,928

FIXLD ASSETS, less accumulated

depeciaion and amier wzaton of $8 04 13674

[THER £E5FTE 120

TOTAL $ BIb4722

PAGILITILS AND UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Clrren Loatiihas

ACZOUNES Payan's Ard eonrLad Bxperses 4 21240

Fayahle 1 e e Uhk Rt

I apies ralates e gsasde Peld Jor e Federa LSF £,325,434
Total current hablibes 6,254,722

NFT ASEETS - -

TOTAL 3 6354722

s b el Al

Statement of Operations and Change in Unrestricted Net Assets of USAC
for the Year Ended December 31, 2008

{unaudited « in thongands)

2008
FEVENUE
Primarily contract revenue 5 170389
CIERATING EXPEMSES
Conlracteal exnonses (Notes b and 77 AZBTY
Farsormer and related expenses 200 Th
Geoneral and admyristalve ac a7
Depreciabion ad amortizann’ 2697
Tolal aperating experses 170,389

CRANGE IN NET ASSETS —
NET ASSETS- -oamning of vedr —

NET ASSETS—End of yoar % —

Sap Mol B e 2lge s
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Statement of Cash Flows of USAC for the Year Ended December 31, 2008
funaudited « in thousands)

2008
CASH FLOWS FROM OPFRATING ACTIWTIES
Cesh receivec nom (he Faderal USF and other vnrelors, 172140
Cash pad [ar speraing expenses and s playess 1152, 0434
lnleres: racelved 80
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities $ 20777
CASH TLOWS FROM IMVESTING ACTIMTIES
Caoral expend ly cs i9,441]
INCRLASE I A5 AND CASH EOUVALENTS G
CASH AND CASH FQUNVALENTS  Begiir i o yrial A0RY
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS—End of year $ 15423
RECONCILIATION NF GHANGL IN NET ASSETs TG HET CAGH
LISLIY NG PROVINED BY OPERATING ACTITIES
Change n nel assers b
Adjasmerts in reconcile change nonel asscls to ref cash
fused 1 provided by rperaning achvibies,
Deprec a0 and eror zaton 2.683
Loss on cenremenl of Fsad gasets 11
Changes i operadng asse's and Jatilines:
Incredse i prepaid exacnsns and current assets 120}
De-case 1 ol assets 2
Ingrease 1 asstts eid ‘o the Feasal ISE 563,405
Increase 11 savabie o he Federal USF "B
Irurease in gceounts navaoie and acorued expensss 15,640
[orease nachilhes reiated 1o assels held [ the Fenera LS 5891
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTMITIES § 207177

S el 2alenenls




universal seryice administrative Comopany

Combining Supplemental Schedule of Assets and Liabilities
Applicable to the Federal USF as of December 31, 2008

firaudited - n thousands |

Schools & High : Low Rural ' Total
et leranes : Cost Income Health Gare USF
Cosi ard cash ogsdlerts 3 .‘75[}"@ 7] Lodghent B CRBA3Y $oR/0E4 1R R3ATD
Irwesirgnls DEABAL — — 504 R
Recoralios 30400 LI009 47957 16079 e
Mlowance o daubtrul aoenrnts AERARH 8B4, ‘ IHDE BN IZ;’UJF\U\
Citror 43568 | — — — —
[ est recenahle JEa h 321 AT 1604

|
Agsat bead wor e Feos o USE 512168 805,21, | TRt 250,050 65,325,334
Rrcerable from USAG 14817 | POLRT 4200 L ing) @500
i |
TOTAL 34998253 | % 826314 5 232185 | t 278182 $6334934
LIARI 1ES | ‘
Payatic o sevice rovidurs $ o 2B.a4E S 0530 N 5 4 $ 21358
Pyl 10 coritibutorg 2820 5326 HoZ 249 082
[ishurserets in e - — — — —
Aect ad liabill es — 421047 b7 R — 488205
UREATCG Tever UL 7 s 1 - 7
|
TOTAL S 29285 $ 436907 | 5 253 | 0§ 538730
Bt AR e EN at Db S VN G s g

Combining Supplemental Schedule of Changes in Net Assets

Applicable to the Federal USF for the Year Ended December 31, 2008

funaudited « in thousands;

Schools&  High ,  Low Rural

ACITION:: ,,_leranef.:__”_ Cost __‘_'_____‘l'pp_t_)_me _ Hea|th(:arev_ By

Arngeds Rilled o cortnoulons F 20056

24 E1BRTLS
lnilRsl neorie 107 678 4748
Total additions 2303407 | as3s925 |, 8%wa0r | 193495 |
JEDUCTIONG
AT, s e CUe 'O sIrIce [Tov e 1./03,680% 1504 04 Fgo1n 48,817
AIIU a1ce for doustiul acoourts 277 220491 907 225
AR0 AING SXGLNSEs 1 l'j,Sh‘E} : 45925 1245 5,780
Urea izedreelzed vl ar 'oss N6 489 -
Nar-cxpend tre réacing (FCG ans'erni G19m 12,612 2,20 RV
Tolar decuchons 186203, 4502 247 BE1040 0 hES2

|

CHANGES iN NET ASSETS $ 440885 | 3 (5392 g 5867 | $137.803 i
o Torer el cleels e clorpss s lasssla ol Tee Derfers sk I e sacan widend Zooeehe o0 2R e aaen 5 De o i yn

7,870,629

71264683
1326
168316
6 480
21480

730" 316

§ BERG1E




universal servicve administrative o opany

Ct_-)mbin-i.ng Supplemental Schedule of Cash Flows
Applicable to the Federal USF for the Year Ended December 31, 2008

(unaudited - m thousands)

Schools & High Low Rural Total
Lihranes_ Cost Income Heaith Care USF

CARM BLOAWNS FRORM TTVERATING AZTIVITIES

tecenea fiom ontibutee & 0 167300 $ 4 GIRE $ 841,571 $ 202240 S7.708.007
I et epeanini] 136,73 10315 1171 {932 104,468
Caed\ par 0 SeTviLD ot (AT 4 457680 B90Z7 B 17 (/7,006 a0:
Aah Ak Tl glnnnlatne ot 17,271 140,88 1,846 Wi {Irdi
Mer-eapumadiiure Tt sFLA Ietnsto £ 19 12612 17 i R

Il csh faroviciad Dy (st )
oparating scfivilies 5 424481

i
o
!

§ 25975 i 130860 $ Hez1u6

CASH FLUWS FIM INVES TINR AGTIVITIES:

Ftermptlins U imssimahts R S = = = VL R.274

w3 &
(G 11 (I SUGiTenis 32241 = = = (11,652 241
kol cash usgd i Investin artlilies BI85 — — (5153
]I..'_ "d '.F Jli‘""!T:""; r“r:[ -” ."_xl_’“‘:.‘- :']| 1'1'.-':-: ra :-; :$| IU.A "l,- oy LII 57 - :”, =ty TS AR
[ Wl AP CASH FCL et _I‘“'l L
Bigtining of year SO0 &t 45006 #OGVS 133615 87271

Fred of yeal & 751 774 § 43285 | $107683 5 2648675 f 53410

FEOONUCILATER OF CHANGES [N NET S8R TS PROVIDED BY

USED INI GASH FROM GPERA

Adieronts 1 meonc
Al LT e

nal assen |
([ T3 ] nlr\,r::‘.‘{hre' arinilies

B oitil evperge 5,248 (@283 L oo 132

S 3 {J5 2] e 4414
(26,108 HJ2he 0. 44 (78,040
USAL 13402 0P8 (Y £ 1300

Increash [cacraatet n hienlites “fl 11 25K a1 (114 diins

RET SASH PROVIDED 8 (USED IN} vl
UFERATING ACTIVITIES § 424481 5 47 $ 21975 | % 1508 § 882108

g " Lk el . " ) Ly SRR aAmi spvss TAe e s s - .
LA i b T o i Vi E i - 2o 1 : Tz gl | T o7
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PRICEAATERHOUSE(COPERS

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
1500 Tysors Poulewsrd

Mclean Wa 22 102-1 281
Teleprane (7023 218 3000
Fasim e (7004 1A 3700

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
To the Board of Directors of Universal Scruce Administrative Company

In our opinion, the accompanying statements of financial position and the related statements of eperations and change N unrestricted net
assets and of cash flows present fairly, n all material respects. the financial position of Unversal Service Adronistrative Company (the
"Company”} as of December 31, 2007, and the change n s net assets and s cash flows for the year then ended. in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of Amenca These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company's management Our responsibility 15 fo express an opmion on these fnancial statements based on our audit, We conducled our
audit of these statemnents ¢ accordance with audiing standards generally accepted in the United States of Amenca and the standards
applicatle to financial audis contaned m Government Auditing Standards issuad by lhe Complroller General of the United Sfates. Those
slandards require that we plan and perform [he audil to obtain rcasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement, An audt also meludes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principles used and sgnificant estimales mage by management, and evaluating the overall financial
stalement presentation. We believe that our audit prowdes a rcasonable basis for our opinion, The financial statements of the Company as
of December 31, 2006 and for he vear hen ended were audiled by olhar audilors whase report dated Junc 25, 2007 expressed an
unqualificd opimion on those statements,

in accerdance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also ssugd our report dated April 14, 2008 on our consideration of the
Company 5 interal conlrad cver financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with cerlan provisions of laws, requlations, contracts
and grant agrecments and other matters for the year ended December 31, 2007, The purpase of that report is to describe the scope of
oul testing cf mternal contrel over inancial reporting and compliance and the resulls of hal testing, and net e provide an opinion on the
internal conirel over financal reporting or on compliance That reporl is an integral parl ¢f an audit perfermad in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards and should be considerad in assessing the resulls of our audil.

Our audit was conducted Tor the purpese of forming an opmion on the basic financial statemants faken as & whole The addiional supple
mental schedules listed n the table of contents are presented for the purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the

basic hnancial statements. These schedules are he responshility of the Company's management. Such schedules have not been subject-
ed 1o the duditing procedures apphed in cur audil of the basic financial slatemenls and. accordingly, we cxpress ne opinion on ther

YP&Cb._ro-‘m\m__ P

Apnt 14 2008

29



un iy e sal service administrative vampany

Statements of Financial Position
As of December 31, 2007 and 2006

fun thousanns!

ASSETS 2007 2006
CURRENT ABSFTS

Vash 2087 L G787

Frepad expenses a1d ol cuirenl 4552's 3 B0

Ausels Feld 1o he Fodoral SR 5725929 5,525,789

Total vuner| assats BH0 TR 5,332,118

FIXEIY ASSETE ets acc.arulaiod copresial o and

amortization ol 85337 ana $5H,304 G530 4205
OTHER A85FTS P 122
TTAL S B7A7 B S 5336,444

.| I

LIABILITIES AND UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIARICITIES

AcCounts payabie and accried experas; T 4 388
Payaalc to he Federal USF 5,967
Lighaiizs relalec 51 assere bed Tor e Federal [5F 5,320,789
[eal correal 1ads s D810 3,336,445
NF1 ASSETS — —
[CTA) B 5737819 F 5,336,444
See nates o Eronogl stgtements — —

Statements of Operations and Change in Unrestricted Net Assets

For the Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006
{1 (housanis!
2007 2006
REVLNUE premarly conliass revenig S 107 B84 5 88088
OPFBRATNG CAPEMSES

Conraciudl expenses iNotes T ard 7 47 AGH 16,509
Personrel anc elates expunses any 14,833
Ceneral and adiminslralve 3063 24,400
Pesinciabion amo: lana and '0ss on elremsms LRI | 58R
Tolel operamig expenses B8 88,558
CHAMIF IN NLT ASSETS — —
NLI &55ETS Begiring of yedr —
MET ASST T5—Lnes of vear 3 — b —
I |

et b
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Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

i thousands)

2007
CASH FLOWS FROM QPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash -ecarrd Lo the Federal USF ard viber vendars 500104194
Cash pad Ior operating capenses and amployees 100 816
Inlerest rece v 336
Ne™ cask iused g provided by operating acvties 3719
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTMTIES:
wapital expenarures (o708
DECREASE I CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 11,5801
CASH &N CASH COUNALENTS, Beornng o year 6267
CASH AND CASH TOUWALENTS, Fnd of yrar T 4 087
E ]
RECONCILIATION OF CHANGE IN NET ASSETS TO NET CASH
{USED IN) PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Charge mnel assels b
Adustmenss o reconole chanae n net assels o 1w cask
tuged iy provarted By operaing actwies
Deprecalior and armrtizahar: 2 a0
Loss an -efromenl of (et As8es 3an
Changes i operstng zssets and lagies
Decrease (nrraasei nprepa d expenses @ cuirant asses 91
Deciae ir other asses
Increase 10 2ssets elo o the Federal USF 200, A0
Decieasa (increasel n pagabic to tne Feoeral USF 55}
Increase n accaurts cavable and actrued expenses VA3
Increase: nalkes welatad 1© agsets held for the Feders USF 400,140
NET CASH (USED INj PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 3 3714
]

U TR BNV
S T L R el shgieeonpld

€

2006
/9,808
(8 2l

424

4,818,

i 80z

P

20
AT
8080

1.0947
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Notes to Financial Statements

As of and for the Years

1. ORGANIZATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The Universal Service Administranve Company °LISAC or the
"Company") was incorporated, effective September 17, 1997, as a
not forprofit. ridopendent, whelly-owned subsidiary of the National
Exchange Carrier Association. e iNECA™, and appointed by the
Federal Communications Commuisson ¢FCCY o adiminister the
Unreersal Service Fund "UJSF™Y and thio universal senaco support
mechanisms USAL'S Board of Drectors consists of ndependent
direciors representing a rross-section of sfakeholders in the LISF
and e umyersal senvice support mechanisms,

The accermpanying financial statcments have been arepared on he
accrual Dasis of accounting, in conformity with aceounting prnciples
nencraly accepted in the United States of America LUSAC follows the
accountng and ceparting reguirerments as set forth in the Amencan
Inshiute of Gertificd Public Arcountants” (AICPA" Audl ad
Avecounbng Gide for Not-for Profit Organizations

The FCC. s Roport and Qrder in CC Dagket Nos, 98-45 and 97-21
UniersAl Serves Order™s released May 8. 1997 and Novermier 20,
1908 respectively, deterrmined that USAC should ser: as the perma-
fient adminstrator of the High Cost, Low Income. Rual Hedlth Care,
and Schoals and Libranes Universal Senace Support Mechanisme,
collectively referred t0 horom as the "Programs,” estabikshed pursnant
to Secticn 254 of the Communications Act ol 1934, as amended.

I5AC, as the admmnistrator of the USF, performs bifineg, collection,
dﬂd disbursemncnt functions for the USE and the Programs, It also
collects information regarding contributing entities and end user
telecommuaications revenucs, and sutnls proecions af demand,
administraive oxpenses for the Programs and quartery aniversy)
scrvice cortnbution data Yo the £0C,

The functions of USAC as the adminstrator of the USF also nelude,
but are not gt ed tny, development of applcatons and assooiated
rnefrustions as necded for the Programs, administering the application
process to ensure compligncs with FCC rules and related operational
mnfrastructurg for such: pracesses, creating and maintaning & Web
site, perfrming outreach and publc education functions, authorizing
audits of telecurmmunication camens, schoals, ibranes, and rural
health care providers, and development and implementation of other
funchons unique 1o the Programs,

NECA performs data collection functions ior the High Cest Pregram

pursuant o FOC ules and tills USAC for the associated costs NECA
15 cormpensated by USAG in acerrance with NECAS Cest Accounting
and Procedures Manual, NECA Services, Inc. ("HECA Services™ per-

Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

forms services for the Schools and Libranes and Bural Health Care
support Frograms, Effectve Novernler 14, 2005, the name of HECA
Serwces was changed o Sole inc "Scix ), For the years endec
Decermber 371, 2007 and 20086, the expense 1ecognized for services
renclered by NECA wore $539 550 and $570,000), respociively, and
for the same penods, the expense recognizod for services rendered
by Sohxwere $43.9 milion and 547 4 million, respecively These
expenses are ncluded in the contraclual expenses i the accompa-
aving Statements of Operations, At December 21, 2007 and 2006,
there were no amounts due o Solix related 1 these scrvices

Funds cellecled from contribulors 1o the USF by USAC are restricted
as o ther nlended use related o the Programs discussed above,
The cash and other financal assets of the USF which USAC admmis-
ters and acis as «n ntermiediary for, are ieported at fan vdlue in the
Stalements of Fnancial Position as assets held for the Federal LISE,
with an 2puAl ameunt recorded as habditcs related to assets held tr

the Federal USF in aecordancn with Statement of Finaneial Aocourmng
Standards ("SFAS" No 136, Fransfors of Assers {o 2 Nof farFrofil
Orqyanization o f“r'u"'dbfe Trust That Rases or Holds Contribulions for
(ihers {"SFAS Mo 1267, In accordance with SFAS No 136, actwities
fclated o the USF are not presented in USAC's Stalemenis of
Operations and Changes i Unresincted Nel Assets and Statements of
Cash Flows

2, NEW ACCDUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In Sepiember 2006, the Anandal Accounting Standards Board ("FASB”)
issusd SFAS No. 157 Far Valie Measwements, which defines far
value, establishes a framework for consistently measuring fair valus
under gencrally accepted accounting principles, and expands disclo-
sures abnut far valug measwiemenls SFAS No. 157 is offectve for
ine Company beginning January 1, 2008, USAL has detormined
that s current disclosures and processes are in complance with
SFAS No. 157,

3. SIGNIFICANT AGCOUNTING POLICIES

Use of Estimates- The preparalion of financial statements in con-
formity with acccunting prnciples generally accepited in the Unted
Slates of Amenca requires managzment 10 mawe estmates and
assurnptions that affect the reported amounts of assets anid abilifies
and disclosure of contingent assets and habilties al the dale of the
firiancial stafements and ths reparted amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting ponod  Actual results coukd ifer from
those estimales.

Fixed Assets- Fixed assels congist of furmiture, counment, keasehald
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improvenents, and scltware and are carried at cost, net of accumnu-
kted depreciation, Depreciation of furniture and equipment 15 caol-
lated on 4 straghi-line basis over e Iive- 10 seven-year cstimaled
Jsefil lives of those assets Amortization of easencld improvements s
calculated on A straight-line bagis over the shorter of the rermaning
2enod of tre rospecive leases or estimated usetul ves of the iy ove-
ments. Arnorfizalion of software is calculatad on a straight-ino J4sis
aver the thres-vear esimated useful lives of those assels. Mantenance
and repars are expensad o opoiatons as ncured,

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets- The Company svaluates [ng-
lived assafs for imparnent whenever events of chanaes n cireum-
starices indicate that he carrying value of an asset may no longer be
recoverabe. If the esimated fuure cash fows (undiscounted end
without interest charges! from the use of an asset were less than the
carmying value, a wnite-tdown would be recorded 10 reduce the related
asset o its estimated fair value

Payable 1o the Federal USF- Payable: to the Federsl USF presanted
in the Company’s Statements of Financial Fosttion corzists of amaunis
pravided ta USAT by the UsF for USAC aperaftions and held in USAG
cash n excess of acoounts pavable and accrucd expenses

Contract Revenue- USAC, ss the adminstrator of e USE recog-
ni7es Coniract revenue when senvioes are rendered, Contract revanues
are equal o the cost of providing administrative sucpun o e USF
and the Frograms, and 1o other FCC fund administrars, Such cost3
are paid hy USF and the other FCG fund adrninistrators to USAC
These ransactions are considered exchange fransactions in accor-
dance wih the MCRA Andlf ard Accoiintng Gride Sor Not Tor-Profil
Crganizavons, The olher FOC tund adminstrators nclude Telscom-

FIXED ASSETS:
OFfce fumitire
Oftee equprment
Computer naware
Comnuler software
Sofbtware gevelnpmer
Leasehiole mprovermenls
Proecis n piogress

Total Fixed Assets
Less accumuriad aopreciston and amorhzator

NET FIXED ASSETS

JOLRELaion dii i

b e e G0 T AR PTG et O e 739 ren tha waarn anded |
AL Axppngn Wek 85 070 228 2t 30 Gal FE2 ot e poans endod |

municaions Teky Sendces ("TRS™, North Amencan Mumbering Plan

("MANP"Y. and Local Numiber Portabiltty ('LNP™ USAC nvoices these
administrators lor drect and indirect charges it neurs each morith fr
the data colleztion and management funcions on therr Cehalf

Concentration of Credit Risk- Fnanciml instrumcnts that potentialy
subjoct USAC, as the acrminmstrator of the USK to concentration of
credii risk consist princizally of cash, cash equivalents. shert-term and
oney termy imvestments, dnd receveDies fom contibutors USAL, &8
the administrator of the USF places s cash, 2ash equivalents, and
shart-term and long-term investiments with figh-credit quality institu-
ticne and lmits the amount of credt cxposure from ary ohw insbiution
USAC maintains 15 cagh and cash equivalents vath finarical instiutions
which are federally insured under the Federal Depository Insurance
Corporation Act {FDIC) The tofal deposits & these instutions are
genarally in excess of he federally nsuad amount of $100,000 and
arz fully covered by a collateralization program through the Federa
Reserve Bark, USAG nas not expencnced ary 1esses on its cash and
cash equvalents USAC also nas nvested LsF excess cash n lex-
prempt securiies 1hat are classilied undo Assels held for the Federal
Uk

Cash and Cash Equivalents- {SAC, as the administrator of the
USF, coneiders dll highly liguid securitics wih an original maturity
o three montns or less as of the financial staternent date to be cash
gluvalents

4. FIXED ASSETS

Freed Assels as of December 21 2007 and 2006 are as follows:

DECEMBER 31

2007 2006
fin thousands:

0 rany 5 214
459 340
£ 1974
4991 4407
— 144
Bb 558
2073 o
12,367 9.560
IE 43T ih,254)
$ 5930 $ 4200

<20 Z06 aspeL ety
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SUMMARY OF ASSETS
APPLICABLE TO THE FEDERAL USF

Cash and cash equivalents

Invastrients

Receraties

Allewance for doubtul accounts

Interest recaivable

Other assets—secunnes pending setilement

TOTAL ASSETS HELD FOR THE FEOERAL USF

5. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES RELATED TQ ASSETS HELD
FOR THE FEDERAL USF (sce charl, above!

In connecton wath USAC'S adminisiration of (he Programs, USAC
collects manies from any makes disbursernents o telecommunica
nons and service prowders, as required by FCC rules, orders, and
directives. As discussed in Note 1, the cash and other financial
assets of the USE which USAL administers and acts &s an interme-
diary for are reported al Tar value in the Stalements of Financial
Posttion as asscls held for the Federal USF, with an cqual amount
recarded as liabimes revated to assets held for it Federal USF The
surmmary of assels applicabie to the USF included above provides
addiional detal with respoct 1o thess amounts {in thousandss,

Short-Term Investments- USAC. as the adminisirator of the USF
considers all securties purchased with an onginal matunty of greater
than three months and a current maturity of less than or cqual 1o one
vedr to be sharl-term inviestments. Short-term investmerts consist
solely of Linited States Treasury secunies with readily determinable
fair values USAC. as the administrator of the USF, accounts for ifs
nvestments in accordance with SFAS No. 124, Accaunting for
Cerlan fnvestmenis Helt by Not-for-Frofit Organizations. Under
SFAS No 124, a not-forprofit orgarzation reports investments n
debi and equity secunties al fair masket value. At December 31, 2007,
there were S4 92 billion i short-tery investments. There wore
$4.38 bilion in sherl-term vestmants al Decernber 31, 2006,

Long-Term Investments- USAC, as the administrater of the LISE
considers all scourities purchased with & current maturity of greater
than one year 1o e long-torm investments. These nvesiments are
accounted for in accordance with SFAS Mo 124, Long-term invest-
ments consist primarily of United States Treasury debt securilies
with readily determinatle fair values At December 31, 2007 and
2006, he USF had $0 and 5158 million of long-term invesiments.
respecively

DECEMBER 31

2007 o ) 2006
F s En IR,

$ 872n ¥ooo5ea17
4971 665 4,638,318
9e7,108 330,941
278,136) (246,583
3,023 13,475
— 130,000
$ 5,725,929 $ 5,325,789

Accounts Receivable and Alfowance for Doubtful Accounts-
USAC, as the administrator ot the LSF recognizes deoounts 1ecaiv-
able ansing from amounts tlled to contnbutors and the renavery of
funds from service providers and tenehclaries, which reman unpaid.
Accounts recenable are recurded at invoiced amounts and generally
to not bear interast Based on the Deatst Collectior: Impravement Act
{"DOIA). &l recevables avor 90-days delinguent are ransfered to
the FCC for collection, excent for roceivablizs where the dobtor hag
anpealed the validity of the amount awed or the doblor has soughi
protection under Chapter 7 or 17 ot the United States Bankruploy
Cede The DICIA recevable balances trarsterred to the FCC remam
as USF recewables. Al recaipts of DCIA fransierrerd receivables are
the property of the LSF and of collected, are tiansferred 1o the USF
by the FCC.

(aress receivables are reduced 10 not redlizatle value Dy the allowance
for doublful agonnts, which reflects the Company's estimate of expo-
sure o nisk of nonpayment of billed balances, determined principally
on the basis of its collecion expencnce. The alowance inciudes
reservos for identified bankiuptcies, identfied inactive contributors,
definguent amaunts that are referred to the FCG for enforcement,
and olher t=2ms Management pencdically reviews such esimates
and management’s assessment of recoverabiity may change base
an actual results

6. INCOME TAXES

USAC 15 a cerporabion organized [or not-for-prafit purposes. 1L s sub-
ject 10 Incomie faxes howavar, income taxes for 2007 and 2006
are not matenal and are included as a componenl of adminstrative
costs. USAC files a consolidated tax return with its parent MECA,
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7. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Commitments to Schools, Libraries, and Rural Health Care
Facilities- The management of USAC has developed operational
procedures to administer the application nrocess through which elig
ble schools and libranes and rural health care prowiders apply for
benetts under the Scheols and Libraries and Rural Health Care
Frograms, respecively, These operations procedures enable USAT 1o
revievy and process applicaticns resulting in funding commitment
‘etters that are issued 0 elgible schools and lbranes and rural health
care providers USAC, a3 the administrator of the USF, also recenes
tunds refumed by service providars and beneficiarics and applies those
funds to reduca the disbursements w schools. ibrariss, and rural
health care providors,

Fixed Contract Commitments

LaSale Banx Agresment- On May 1, 2001, USAC enfered info an
ag eement wilh Lasale Bank NA ("LaSale” the "LaSake ﬂ\areement”"w
The LaSalle Agreement contract porod runs fram July 1 trough June
30 of the following vear. The inial Lasalls Agrsement fve-year contract
ended June 30, 2006, On Decenber 28, 2005, ZAC notified LaSale
that 1t would cxeimse he fivsl of Tree one-year iensws) opions under
Ine LaSalls Agresment, which extended the expiration of e LaSalic
Agreement from July T, 2006 1o June 30, 2007, I early 2007 USAG
notified LaSalle that 1 would sxercise the second one-year renewal
and on September 8, 2007, signed an amendment to the contracl
extericing the expralien 10 June 30, 2008, On May 9, 2008 USAC
exergisedt the fingl option penod of the LaSalle Agresment through
June 300 2009 Under the terms of the LaSale Agreemenl, LaSalle
pravides nanking and investment management services for a fixed
annual cantractual amount that may be satisfied by fees derived by
LaSalle from the investiment of & partion of the custodial assets,

Un duly 13, 2006, Laballe notified USAD that the fees for January 1,
2006 through June 30, 2006, of $528.400 were waved by LaSalle
Decause ol fees earmed on cash teposits Reld by Lasale. In an amend-
ment 1o the LaSalle Agresment dated September 8, 2006, he parties
n:]h%bd hat tees would be satisfied by USAC maintainng an average
rnorliily cash balance of $76 millon.

Solix, Ing Agreement- Cin May 1. 2000, LISAC enlered inlo an
agreement with NECA [Agreerment’). The Agreement was 4 thige
year contract, which ran from July 1. 2000 fo . Jure 30, 2003, On
July 1, 2002, the Agresment was amended and extended o June
30, 2005, with renewal options through June 30 2008, On

Effective March 29, 2000, USAC cxeouled a partal exercise ol the
contract renawal gplion by extanding the Agreement through Decembe
31,2006 Ondonl 25, 2006, USAC excculed a partial exorcise of
the contract renewal option Dy extendng the Agreement Lhrough
December 31, 2007, On December 12, 2007 JSA( exarcsed e
remaining 1cnewal oplion by extending the Agreemen: through June
00,2000 Unde the teims of the Agroement, SO|I,‘-(, Inc. provides
pIONrammatic suppor sorace 1o the Schools and Liranss and Rurel
Heallh Care Peograns The future contraciual required payments for
the penod Jarcary 1, 2008 through Jung 30, 2009, under he
Agrecment for both the Senoals and Libranes and Rural Heallh Care
programs, total $45 4 million

Telcordis Agreement On September 2. 2003, USAC enfered inte ar
agieement with Telcordia Technologies Inc. & Telcord a Agreernent’)
The Telcordia Agreement 1 a five-year contrach with & tour-rmont
tanstticn phase, 10 the event the coniract 1s not renewed or extended,
that runs fram Septemier 2, 2003 ta December 31, 2008, with 4
renewal aplicn lor one year Under the terms of the Telcordia
Agreement, Telcorda provides program support scrvices [0 the High
Cost and Low Income Programs, The fullre contizclual requiged
paymenls par year through Deceriber 37, 2009, unaer the Telcordia
Agreement, are as follows:

fin housanas

5

2008
2009

3975

$ 3,930

Lease Comnutiments  1SAD lpases its office space under two opor-

atng \E’dHE’ apreements gl .Q on September 30, 2015 AL Decenber
30, 2007
are

1he Tuture mmimas rental sayments Lnder thege leases
as tollows

e thousandsi

2006 T 1.558
2009 $ 1811
2010 51450
2011 $ 1,694
2012 01,733
Thersafter $ 5079

Fent cxpense under operaling eases was $1.7 milon and $1 6

January 1, 2003, the contravt wag assigned to NECA seraces, Inc | million for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006,
On Novembel 14, 2005, NECA =eraces, Inc. became Salix, e, fESUECJUVB‘\,’
35



universal SerVvice

adminisirative

coOmpany

Notes to Financial Statements
As of and for the Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

Legal Dispules- The Company 1 mvoked in various legal nroceed-
ings and claime ncidental 1o the normal conduct of its business.
The Company reports matters herein where the value of & claim
agserted by or aganst the Company exceeds 5450 000 or mors
for an indnidual matter, or for matters relating 0 the same plaintift
or defendant that in the aggregate amount to $440,000 ar maore
All such matters reported herem 1elate solely o LISAU as adminis-
tator of the USF There are no matenal matters to report that relate
sulely 1o USAC as a comorate entity. The Company reports the fol-
IOWING matters

B A complamt was fled to recover an allegedly preferential pay-
ment i BSAC i tho amount of $457,000 by a telecommunica-
tions serace provider required o conmbute 1c the UsE On
December 22, 2002, the ceurt granted surmmary judgrment in
LISAC'S favor, Plantit appealed the judgment, and, i an order filed
September 12 2003, the United States Barkrupley Appellate
Pansl ([BAP) for the MNinth Circull roversed the lower court decision.
SAC appeated this decision to the United States Court of Appeals
for the Ninth Circuil. On September 20 2006, the Ninth Circurt
rourt atirmed the BAP and remandad the case 1o he Barnkrupfcy
Court o dscovery and trial. USAC and the plantff have been dis-
cussing a seflement of this matier and the parties Nave 1entatively
agreed on setllement torms. There can be no quarantee that a set-
flerment wall De consummated, and, in the event no settlement
accurs, USAC expects the planiff © recommsnce the Iigation by
requesting the colrt 1o schedule discovery and other activities
assoviated with the Igation 11 he Itigation recommences. at the
present fime, USAC 1 unable fo estimate whether an unfavonabls
OUIcome s ikely ar the armount or range of poteitial lss.

B A preferential paymont suit was filed by a Chapter 11 iquidating
frustes in April 2004 in the United States Bankruptcy Court for the
Southern District of New York, The trustee 15 seeking to avoid and
recover from USAC alleged preterential pre-petiion payments tolal-
ing $11.2 nulion Because the partes are considenng, amony
other things whelher a post-Chapter 11 order of the Bankruptey
Court expheity suthionzed the challenged paviments. the paries
have mutually agreed to extend USAC's deadline to angwer e sult
gach month for an additonal month Ag e deading has been
repeatedly extended by the partics at the request of the Trustee,
USAC expects the partes wil continue extending the deadline
indefiniely At the present time, SAC is unable to estimate whether
an unfavorable outcome (s likely or the amount or range of poten
fial 1nss.

B A former emplayee fled a suit aganst the Company an May
37, 2007 gllogng terminztion of employment and olher discrini-

nation on the basis of race and ancestry in violation of the Civi
Righls Act of 1866, The former emploves 1s seeking reinsiatement
and darmages in an unspecified amaount, USAC has filed a mobion ¢
dismiss the complant. The motion 1 perding before the court and
thero has been no discovery or other procesdings in the case at
this time. At the present fime, USAC is unable to estimale whethel
an unfavorable cuicome is lkely or the amount or range of poten-
bal loss,

B On June 1, 2007, a contributor to the USF filed & Chapter 17
larkruptcy petition As of July 31, 2007, USACS nost-patition
agministrative charges against the contributor were $2.8 miflion,
The contributor has informen USAC that it intends o submit revised
revenue information that will substantally reduce USACs adminis-
trafive claims. At the present ime, USAC is unable to estimato whal
ameunt the contributar wil claim it owes or whether it1s entitled 1o
a refund and whether the contributor or USAC will prevall in this
mafer with the court

W A complaint was filed by a telecommunications carrier alleging
USAC faled to pay High Cosl Support Mechanisrn benefits in tho
amount of $300,000 to the company following the acquistion of
certain exchanges by the company from another carrior. On
Cetober 15, 2007 . e court stayed the action indefinitely on the
grounds that the FCC has prmary junsdicion te decids the issues
raised in the complaint, The FOC has not Issued a decsion con-
ceming this matter as of yet, At the present time. USAC is unable
o estimate whether an unfayorable outcome 15 Tkely or the amount
ar range of polential loss,

W A complant was filed on Decamber 28, 2007 by a schools and
Libranes Suppnrt Mechanism provider in Texas alleging that USAC
faled 10 make payments on approved funding requests for a sup-
port mechanism applicant The plaintift seeks to 1ecover liquidated
damanes of aporoximately $778.000 plus exemplary darmages of
three Imes thus amount The mafter 18 being ftigated 1 the United
ofates Distnct Court for the Southern District of Texas. UsAC has
liled a motion to dismiss Tor failug to pursue statutarlly reguired
administrative remedies and failure 1o state a clan for which relict
can be granted, The pamies are wating for the court to rule on
USAC's motion At the present time, USAC 15 unable to eslimate
whether an onfavarable outcome s likely or the amount or range
of potenial lass,

W A complaint was fled on January 2. 2008 by 4 5chools and
Libranes Suppart Mechanism provider in kentucky alleging that
USAC interfered with e provider’s contractual refationships with
three separate school dsincts, The plaintift has nol specified the
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amount of damaages 1t is seeking to recover, The matter 15 haing
Ingated 11 the United States Distnet Court for the Southern District
of Kentucky. USAC has filed a motion to dsmiss for failure Lo pur-
sue statutorlly required administrabive remedies and falure to state
a claim for which 1elief can be grantod  The parties are waiting for
the court 1o rule on USAC's mation, At the present time, USAC 18
unable to estimale whether an unfavorable outcome 18 kkely or the
amount or range of potential 1oss.

The Company 15 vigorcusly defending the matters described above
Althiough it is impossible 1o predict the outcome of these or any of
the nther outslanding logal proceedings involvng the: Company,
the Company believes that such outstanding leqal proceedings and
claims, iIndacually and in the aggregale, are not tikely 1o have a
material effect onits financial position er resulls of operabions

8. RETIREMENT PLANS

USAC has a 401k Refirement Savings Plan coverng all USAC 1eqgu-
lar emplovees The plan s both contrbutory and noncontrbutory
and all contributions gre subject to certan Iimitations as prescribed
by the plan docament and government regulations, Employees aie
immediglely vested i the employver cantnbuton, which is funded
an a current basis. Emplover conlributions charged o aperations
wers 514 milion anc ST 3 mullicn dunng 2007 and 2006,
respeciively

9. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

SAIC Agreement In January 2008, USAT entered into an agree-
ment with the Sgience Applications Interranonal Corporanan ["SAIC
Agreement™. Tne SAIC Agreement is & fiee-year cantract, wiich
rung from January 2, 2008 to Decerbar 31, 2012 Under the
lerms of the agraement, SAIC vali provide information 1echnology
support services 10 LISAC and upgrade and transiion support for
hardware, software, and related customer support The future con-
fractual required payrments for the period January 2, 2008 through
December 31, 2008, under the SAIC Agreement are $9.5 million.

MIL Agreement- On January 11, 2008, USAC entered nfo an
agreaiment wath MIL Corporation "MIL Agreement™). The MIL
Agreement 1s a mulli-year contract, which runs from January 2008
untl completion: Under the terms of the MIL Agreement, MIL wil
provide reguirements to USAC and acquistion suppor seraces far
the new financial management systems The fulure gontractual
required payments for the panicd January 2003 through December
31, 2008, under the MIL Agieement are estirmated at $737 635,
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funduditsd o thousands!

2007

ASSETS:
Casn and cask equwalers
Iriveg'mants
Renenab.os
Nlowance Tor ooubthul aoronnts
Other assets
Irierest recerable
Asge's Peld fon he Fedaral SR
Heraranie rom LHAC

TOTAL

LIABILITIES:
Fayabe 10 serice providers
Payen o 10 toninautors
disbursemernits; 17 1 arsil
Acorund Taoimles

TOTAL

Schools & High Low Rural | TOTAL
Libraries i Cost ‘ Income  HealthCare,  USF

5560285 B478086 $85670 S133814 % 87.2/1
400" 565 — - 4971665
955 088 520740 106,746 963 987,05
Ua7.837 | SR 122018 2216 ‘ 078,136!
Iy G 450 | 198 5,127
1500000 533010 53050 | 430 Bi2n0/
AR 24023 5633 (3,489 5,809
Sanadatt  $B857047  SUEAALD FITHA3 $ 5031828

$ zmo! oo

$ 23820 S 2585 $ 5,008
630 1300 2805 356 23 41

_i — J— B . .
CaTIGES | 60049 | 10134

§ 212 SAOBE0E S TA461 S 3T 5 A9584)

ASSETS:
Cash anid cash enliva ents
[nueginerts

Racuiuhlos
Alowance for doumf accoms
Ohe assets
IMerest receranle:

Aggets hed [on ke Neckyal HSF
Recawain irom UHaL

TOTAL

LIABILITIES:
Fayable 0 service providers
Payable to confrouiors
Dishursements in tansr:
Acorued lighil hes

TOTAL

e T SO -
R A N A e e TR L KR e

Lk tenamien T A0 aned 2008, w0

Schools & High Low | Rural TOTAL
Libraries Cost Income  Health Care USF
T F Ol [ SO N loF ‘ 193047 % Endze| 30 59817
4,538,214 1 — | — | 4538310
06710 1 44568 79,843 1520 | 830 941
a2 (97 5100 3.026) 715 (245,953
"30,000 — - — 130 000
"0.573 1,900 g7 185 15475
438 571 FA2 400 251 18] 20712 5325780
AT 13,677 2301 i1,15% SREeT
LAS72 A8 ) $676,997 | BenIN2 0§ 28509 | S uA31748
I — T
$ 30822 % 20343 ¢ A0
4116 | 7,895 EF
126,878 - —
- 345 470 64515

s g | 3373660 |
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Combining Supplemental Schedules of Changes in Net Assets Applicable
to the Federal USF for the Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

ADDITIONS:
AmoLnts billed -0 conirinutors
Interest income

TATAL ADDITIONS

DEDUCTIONS:
Amount nad and due 1o service provders
Alvwarce for doubtfu accodnis
Operaling expenses
Unreghzed:real zed gan o loss

TOTAL DEDUCTIONS

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

ADDITIONS:
Arowts oille o conlnbulors
Irrcrast Income

TOTAL ADDITIONS

DEDUCTIONS:
Amaut pad and dug o serace providers
Allowarce for douothl accodrts
Operanng expenses
Unreanzedfrealzed gan o loss

TOTAL DEDUCTIONS

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

{unavditad

i thatisands!

2007

Schools & High | Low Rural i TOTAL
Libraries Cost | Income  HealthCare | USF
TIO70.837 | FoN200R | FT7HAL0 R 100906 | % 7.20G815
200,188 ¢ PUROYAD | G716 n.315 235,805
2171.0M A4 7T TERBTR AR, 7,545,710
1,760,060  4.202.626 827,022 36 990 RV
12,525 17 657 1101 1,501 RIS
71,638 17158 0,401 ‘ 7231 .
72310 — — ‘ —
| 837 489 A,327 411 H27.68°3 1 45731 7.0eR,47

Schools &
Libraries

S142.138 $ 110,480

5 ol 236

Rural

Low
HeaithCare |

Income

TOTAL
USF

$21£0,080

fx]
[=]
171
-~

ERS IR

i
5oodsad ! $7157,883

67870 22 B0 ER 2500 203 807
2,307,965 402050 870,430 21235 7361671

PEO8.313 A Gas B105 A0 573 6603415
{1.2688 8,749 2024 14 9658
08,375 12165 K 4745 28,007
i47G0 — L9
17240200 41054978 875,767 ‘ 44 436 5,700,601
ToRAA045  F 46004 | B 40171 § 113201 % 661,060

FnE e e e December 5500

et TONE T eqe o e Sunoa! Pragtime
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universall Service administrative rompany

Combining Supplemental Schedules of Cash Flows Applicable
to the Federal USF for the Year Ended December 31, 2007
(unaudited - m thousands)

2007

Schools & | High ' low Rural TOTAL
Libraries | Cost income  Health Gare USF
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: \ |
Cash ecenved from conmbitors 2050574 $A990026 0§ 7RR,056 0§ 140002 57283 650
Interest received 211,945 EP RS ‘ 10,073 5598 24991
Cusn pard 10 sorvice prowders naaz1edr | @270682 08779830 o Ao 017,575
Cask pac for adrinstrative costs HEARCEN Y 127,508 7783 |4.895;-| 102,370,
Nel cash provided Oy jused ) oparatirg acliviles 208142 | H(.030 | {60 B08; 10051 AR EaI
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: : \
Reaerphion of meestmicnts 8,398 862 — -— — 0393882
Purchase of investmerls i9,784 824; - ‘ — - 9784.842
Nef cash used In wesing actritles 1385 967 | — -— 385 8962)
27 654

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH EQUIVALENTS T.B20) 56.030 BOA0E Y 110051

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS: ‘

Beonning of year (482,468 372036 146,786 23 763 9617
|
End of year § BoG2E f 42066 F BHEMB IR 13iHIL | F 8727

RECONCILIATION OF CHANGES 'N NET ASSETS
PROVIDED BY (USED IN) CASH FROM ‘ !
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Changes n net assefs £ 333552 % 10n.an2 0 % 4 138) § 104800 5 507236
Adualments to reconcile changes n net 255618 o
ret cash provided Dy used ni opsahing aclivities
Bad dent expense 12525 17,657 S “a0l 31573
Amorhzed mscoun, 5064 — — 8561
Unrealized/ieshzed gain o lnss 7234 | I/ 2328:
Chianges in operarng Asse's and labiltics, | ‘
Decrease wreasas ininteres! recevable 3192 IRENIN 357 783 b, A5
DECIEASC UNCTBASE) 1M accounts rocewahls 50,278 iRCTY 20,903 e (166,65
Decrease urereasel in ocemabye from USAC 9,425 i10.351; ‘ 1,352 2530 Ha
Uacrease {increasel in other assets 30000 — 130,000
Inurease inecreasel in haby wes 131,604 21,944 1539 . 203 | i105 868!
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) |
OPERATING ACTIMITIES S Un. 14z | $ L6000 & £0608E: . B 10,001 | L NE616
Bl Tius Sl et e pash fowe of e ot 007 e e ynans anaend Dapsibier B 9007 ane ek G aete g e Bupgont Do
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Combining Supplemental Schedules of Cash Flows Applicable
to the Federal USF for the Year Ended December 31, 2007

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash receed Tom conlrbutars
Irterest recewved
Cash paa 1o service provide:s
Cash paid for sdiminist:alive costs

Nel cash proveed by fused int operaling aciwilies

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Ruderplion o mvesimints
Puichase of iInveshren's

Nel cash usad in rvesheg activitios

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:
Beginning of yoar

End af year

RECONCILIATION OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
PROVIDED BY {(USEQ IN) CASH FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Charges in net dssels
Adistrents 10 1ecancile caanges 1l assets o
ret cash provided by {ussd i operating achiviligs
Bad debit expense
Amortized discourt
Unreahzed eased gan o7 10ss
Changes i aperaing asseis and hablies
Decredse INCIease: 1n Interest =Camable
[Jarreast (NCrease’ in accourn's recenable
Decrease (ncreased in recsvaoe from USAC
[ecrease ncremser 1 oMer assels
[Merease (ecreasc: i anilties

NET CASH PROVIOED BY (USED IN)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Fufp— g soimwtde teien e M S

L for g eand e DecemDge 1Y

Schools & |
Libraries -

sl

dmaydited < in thous:

20

by

High
Cost

Low Rural

2006

TOTAL
USF

$2204 586 %1174 451 |

Income ‘ Health Care

T2 7190 5 30052

$ 7.163.588

130,672 | 21,188 3893 2074 162,107
A703,A720 0 2084090 FOTRZNG 42008 [Bade 248)
153,063 10,200 {597 (3,572 /9,428
B/ 863 | 31,287 21,398 | 1,525 HH8,019
b.56LA32 — | — — 5,560,032
18,843,000, I — — 15843809
i3,283.2771 — ‘ — 13283277
|
i 7 eh A4 31,283 2% 506 (11.525 2684 258

2 242,848

340733

124,888 55,294 |

S 1482 468 ’ 3

372.036

$ ob3045

i1,°89;
31,09
- 1
6200
1756
nity ‘
{130,000
3902

25,054

8,789

800

1
!

(30.3851
RGO

G747

$146,280
—

$ 15170 1 § 1132

Y034 15

l
817 185)
(22, 160; 1§35
1123 177
3,937} )

L GE;
491353
8530
(130,000,
141,759

S 8hs 805

|
$ 31283 & 21990 515250 g

200,019

s g SN s paoh ot e St Programs
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PRICEAATERHOUSE(COPERS (B

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

18 300!

OGRS

FACSITIN: 172

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To tre Board of Drectaors of Universal Service Adrinigirative Company’

We have audied the financial statements of Unwersal Service Admunsstratve Company {the “Company s as of and o the vear ended
December 31, 2007, and have 1ssued our report thereon dated Apri 14, 2008, We conducted our audt n accordance with audiing
standards generally acrepted i the Uniled States ot Amenca and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued Dy e Comptroller General Of the United Stales

Internal Contial Over Finanoial Beporting

In pranning and performing aur audit, we considered the Company's mternal control over financial 1eporting as a basis 1or designing

our auditing procedures for ihe purpose of expressing our opireon on the financial statements, but not for the purpcse of expressing an
opinion on the effectivenass of the Campany's infernal coniral aver inancial repering Accordingly, we do not cxpress an opimon on the
elfectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting

Our consideration of informal control over financial reporing was (o1 the imiited purpose described 0 the preceding paragraph and would
not nacessarly dentify all deficiencies in intermal control over financial reparting that might be significant deficiencies or miatenal weak-
nesses. Hewever, as discusséd below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over financial reparting thal we consider 1o be 2
significant dehiciency and a material weakness

A conlrol deficiency exasts when the design or aperakon of a control does nol allow management or employees, in the narmal course of
performing ther assigned functions, o prevent o detect misstatements on a tmely hasis A significant deficiency 15 a conirel detwiency, or
combinalion of control deficencies, that adversely affects the enfity's abiity to inifiate. authorize, record. process, or report financal data
religbly in accordance with generally acceplod accounting princicles such that there is more than a remote ikelihood that a misstaternent
of the eniity's inanorgl staternents that is more than iInconsequential will not be prevented or detocted by the entity's internal control

We consider the dehoiency descnbed below 1o be 2 signitcant deficiency m mternal controls over friancial reporting

(hservation 1
We noted that the Company had not properly reconciled the fixed assel sub-ledger to the general ledger contrcl acoount(s)
througnaut the year. Fixed asset activity for the year and 1#laten depreciation expense were not acourately recorded until year-end.
After managemert performed a fixed assel inventory numerous expenditures were reviewed &t vaar-end and management
defermined that the maiority of thnse expenditures were incurred in the current year and qualfied for capitalzation. The related
depreciation assoclated with the assets acquired dunng the current year and the pnor year was calculated and recorded at that tme
The net effect 1o the financial statements was an adjustment of approximately $2.2 million, resuting from a decrease in accumu-
lated depreciation offset in part by an mncrease {o the cost of fixed assets. This lack of raconciing the fixed assel sub-ledger to
the general ledger appears §0 be the result of turnover in the Finance Deparment dunng the year, as well as 1o an accumulation
gt errors and unrecorded transactions in the fixed assel and accumulated depreciation accounts dunng 2007 and in prior vears
The Company also has & low capitalizaton threshold of $250 which increases the number of purchased ilems that must be cap.-
lahzed and fracked 0 the fixed asset sub-ledger Also, failure to reconcile the fixed asset sub-ledger to the teneral ledger centrol
accountis: on a penodic basis can lead lo the misstatemont of fied assets and related accumulatod deprecizlion and deprecia-
tion expense: balances on the Company's inancil statements,

iconhnued on next pagel
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PricewaterhouseGoopers LLP
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Recommendatiar
We recomriend the Company rmaintan an accurate fixed assets sub ledger throughout e year,
In this regard, management should

I, Update the existing formial txed asset policy. The update should congsider revaing capitalzation thresholds,

2. Review assigned fixed asset depreciable Iives to ensure the depreciable life 3 based on 4 reasonable estimate
of the asset’s usetu life

3 Ensure that capital additions are dentified, reviewod/approvard and recarded at the fime of acquisilion in the suby ledger

4 Reconelg the sub-ledger to the general ledger confrel agrountis} on a monthly basis, This roconciliztion shoud mclide
the timely invostigation and resolution of noted difterences,

5. Provide adequatc training to sfaff to ensure there 15 4 comprehensive understanding of the relationship benseen
amounts recorded in the sub-ledger and the coresponcding affect of amounts which are reflected i the general ladger
and ulbmately in the Inancial statermnents

6. Ferform penodic physical inventones of fixed assets o confirm that items recorded in the fwed asset sub-ledaer physically exst
and are beng Approprialely maintained and uilized as intended, Missing assets should be identified and investigated.

7 Document and maintan eadence of management's monitoring of fixed asset actvity

8. Aceount for the refirement of assets in a consistent manner

A matenal weskness 1s & sigrificant deficiency, or combination of significant deticiencies, that results in more than a remote kelbood thiat
amatenal misstaternent of the financial statements will not bo prevented or detected by the entity's infernal control, We consider the defi-
clency descnbed Delow te be a matenal weakness in internal controls over Iinancial reparting

Ohservation 2

We noted thaf the Company did not updals the estimated collection percentages used n the calculation of the allowance for
doubfful acceunts to accurately reflect historical coliechion frends and cther relevant information The Company's palicy fur
determinng the allowance for doutitul accounts requires the use of a congistent calculauen methodology that applies certain
percentages to the accounls reccivable balances based on the type of payor/customern, However, the Company did not take inlo
congideration all relevant informanon related o seftlement of outstanding accounts recevable balances An allowance for doufitiul
accounts analysis that does not nclude af relevant and current information regarding fistorical collection trends axpnses the
Company to a misstated net realizable value of aceounts receivable, as evidenced by a S22 milion year-end adjustment o the
alowance.

ecomnigndation 9

The Company should continually reevaluate the methodolony and data used te determing its estmated alowance for doubtiul
accounts 10 ensure that percentages used in the caloulabon are updated baged on historical collection trends, ncluding the mosl
recent wite-off and collection actvity

Our consideration of internal cantrol over financial reporting was for the lirmiled purpose descnbed in the frst paragraph of this scelion and
would not necessanly identfy & deficiencias in internal control that might be sinificant deficiencies or malenal weaknesses,

{confinuad o next pEdR
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Facsirni 703, 418 3100

As part of obtaining 1eascnable assurance about whether the Company's financial slatements are free of materal missiement we per
[ormod tests of s compliance wih certan provisions of laws, reguiations, contracts And grant agreemenits, nencompkance with which coutd
have a direct and materlal eitect un the delermination of ingncial staternent amuounts, However, providing an opinion on cempliance with
{hose provisions was net an obyectve of our audit and. accordingly, we do nat express such an opinicn The results of our tests disclosed
no instances of ncneomaliance or other matlers that are required 0 be reported under Governmeant Auditng Standards

Managerment's response 1o our observalions follows this report. We did not audit managament's response and accordingly, we express no

apin on .

We: ninled certain other mattars that we reportad 10 management of the Comoony in a separate letter dated Apit 14, 2008

This repart 1 imtended salely tor the information and use of the Company's Audit Committee. managament, and the Office of Inspector
General of the Federal Communications Commission, and 1s not intended 1o be and shoule not be used by anyone other than these

speciiicd parties

April 14, 2008

Mm\mw i@
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USAC

Unweersal Service Admimistrative Company Vice President of Finance

2000 L Street N.W. - Suite 200
Washington, DC 20036

Voice: 202.776.0200

Fax: 202.776.0080
www.usac.org

June 25 2008

Board of Vireciors

Univessal Service Adrministrative Campany
Atn.: D 3nan L. Tabott

2000 L Street, NW, Sute 200
Washington, DC 20036

Dear Dr Talbott

The FY 2007 Independent Auditor's Reports 00 Internal Contral aver Financial Reporing 1epored a matenal weakness and a significant def-
cency in tho internal conmols aver the inancial statement process 'USAC Management response is included bolow,

MATERIAL WEAKNESS
1) Use Current Historical Trend Data When Calculating Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
for Universal Service Fund (“USF") Receivable Accounts

USAC Management Response

USAC's practice has been to base the alvwance for doubthl accounts on a histoncal threo-year collechon pattern modified for any additional
operatonal effects that management may be aware ol USAC has updaled the hstonical information each year during the annual audit procass
and used thal iniormaton 1o reviss the allowance and use those new rates 1or 1he subseguent year Ik provious years, the adjusiment Lo
historical rates was ncluded as part of the auditor's recommendad adjustments Management wll revise this procedurs 0 the adjustment 1
the historical rates may be made before the yoar is closed Additonally, USAC procedures wil be modified o require the ravies of the histon-
¢4 collechon rates on a quarterly basis LSAC will also review the components inderlying the caluigion of the allowance and insuro that the
most relevart and bmely data 15 Deing used m the determnaton of the allowance

SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCY
2) Improve Fixed Assets Records and Accounting Procedures

USAC Management Response

USAC agraes win the observaton and recommenditon USAC has taken several aclions o address the observer weaknass, USAL has
reviewed and revised its policy and procedure concernmg fiked assats, including capitalization thresholds and useful life critena. The fixed
asset subsidiary ledger 1s now reconciled 1o the general ledaer on a manthly basis and a ol forward 1s mantained 13 identfy monthly acquis
fiorie, refirements, and adjustments, USAC has implemcnted an anoual physical inventory of fixed assets with approprate reconglliation 1o the
general and subsidiary ledgers.

We are committed to coninually strengthenng USAC's internal controls over financial reporing and pracesses W lnok forward 1o working in
By 2008 to resoha any FY 2007 audit findings and 1o further improve the completsnass, tmeliness, and acouracy of USAC' financal
information

Sinceraly, —
W "

W 8. Erwin
Vice President of Finance
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Program Statistics, Unaudited - 2008

The following pages contain information from the four support pro-
grams administered by USAC. To better understand this information,
please note the difference between disbursements and commitments as

well as program/funding year versus calendar year.

Rural Health Care and Schools and Libraries P"r':ﬂgrar.ﬁ'

~ Funding Years

FuninG Yean 2008

B

FUNDING YEAR

For ine Rural Heatth Care and Schools ang
Lizrenes programs, & Funding Year tuns irom

July 1 1© Jure 30 of the iliowing veal

CALENDAR YEAR

ite High Cost ang Low income programs
disburse ‘unds on a Caiendar Year basis
Information in the tabies 1s for Calendar
Year 2008

Note: I the High Cost Program Disbursemens
by Componeni table (page 47}, High Cost
Loop meludes dishursaments ior its iwo
succomponents, Salety Net Additve Supgon
and Safety Vaive Sugport. Long Term
Support (LTS} was meiged o Intersiaie

RO

i

Common Line Supperd {1CLS) m Juiy 2004
2008 iCLS disbursemanis may inciude
LTS based on price-pericd adjustments,
DISBURSEMENTS

The iabies contam tne amount of USF support
issued in Calendar Year 2008, which 0oss
not refiect ceriain accounting adiustments
For tha Rural Heain Care ang Schock and
Liprarigs programs, the disbursemant infoy
mation 1§ shown by Funding Year n agdilicn
fo e total Calendar Year 2008 amount
dishursed For the Rural Heailn Care and
Schools ant Libraries programs, disburss
ment information | Caandar Year tahies
may represent muitipie Funding Years

7

JiE 30, 2087

| FURDING COMMITRIENTS

Fungiing commimanis are not disburse

ments Funding commitmanis are ssusd
by e Rural Haalth Care and Scroois a
Lirarigs programe wa commitment letiars

CLTD
that angrove what will be fungag through
USF supoort paymients for a parncula
Funding Yeai Commitments made =
Calendar Year 2008 may be ior apptios
during previous Funding Years

tions Hiag
ang 2 current Funding Yea:

The tables for the Ruiat 5 Care ang
Schools and Libraries programs provids

Cdendar Year 2008 ana R
commiment nformation
dishursament informaii

the Schiols aad Liprari

1 Year 2008
wing Yegr 2008

i rim ot &
118 Crovigec or

High Cost Study Areas by Category, 2008
funavdited)
Cosi  © Average . o | Prce Toial  Competiter ©  Tota!
Company | Scheduie i Cap iLEC Study Areas’ Stucy Argas

R T g > -
RuRrat 794 455 1,249 a 104 1,353 283 8535
Now-RuRaL 4 1 5 § 80 85 053 238
Torat 798 | 456 1,254 § 184 1,438 535 1.974

Nate *Competrior count refigcts some compettive ETCs he! serve 'n ot ruigl and non-rural SIudy &eas ang are counied Sepsidiely m each calzge
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High Cost l-’r'og-ram - Disbursements by Component, 2008
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{unaudited « in thotisands)

iliierséain' :

e See s o0 paue 45 nder Oatendst Ve Numaars may 0ot agel vue 10 tounding

interstate

&ccess  Common Line
_ Support  Support
$ 19,083 $ 19546
0 75,219
0 2450
17,893 3100
137 60.956
40 543 23,661
17 668 23.02¢
&77 {1853
213 0
0 0
53.554 9847
22,855 £0.457
g 14758
2,081 20,022
14,387 11333
11,077 27 863
19,455 25297
11,697 55293
6,460 68.210
15803 26.5%
13,680 43,526
54 15,409
2,348 885
1,502 174
725 25,507
3.821 60 625
23.318 21148
2,850 38,880
327 24,325
8,631 36,524
10,088 6,656
848 3.543
253 333
12,335 168.905
13.820 12,836
26,388 34770
822 40.750
242 o
1,112 16,124
1,845 52 750
18,288 25393
20,158 2826
b A 215609
31 g
16.077 £5187
111 35,343
9,353 24,825

48041 77

2 358 8.997
1357 8.530
G 12135
56,209 8277
(1,811} 39,257
19,697 3,304
181 81715
5,363 14819
$584814 § 1,620,740

'Lir':-a!

Swilching
_ Support

$ 5716
15,561
1,536
G262
11.072
4673
4752
(112

@

(4]
3710
14.022
¢

221
5,355
11,322
g.218
24,424
14,496

£908

5,872
7.508
509
633
10,660
18.913
4935
7048
707
21,311
5870
4,013
437
7214
13,514
475
15814

473
3886
18,314

3785
3550
¢

5029
8128
3,331
25,463

$ 415024

8.319

Totat
2008

s 107802

62 184
3,985
69,856
153,518
104 936
50 708
180
213

0]
77,293
124 134
18,228
61,853
53,868
71018
73894
133.141
225,055
104 088
160,335
32.450
4072
2365
853266
133 864
283128
110,630
79,317
113,689
27823
8.652
in8
85,224
47,654
78,268
93,505
722
353,973
144 G26
83.055
54,335
215,609
31
Q2472
95 245
35.821
259885
20.447
23,084
21,128
74 587
77042
65 325
146,357

=

58,714

$ 4477788

Total
1898 -
- fasues
§ 094 756
1138620
18,447
633,748
197,802

=5

225683
500,228
554,772
525,813
770,128
1,417,981
582 517
1.128.650
327 268
36,23
54,883
532088
920444
1915.345
887,665
700.535
571,665
260.812
104,668
25702
550,996
549 575
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High Cost Program - Disbursements by Rural / Non-Rural, 2008
(unaudited « in Hipusands)

State Total Rural Total Non-Rurai Total 2008

Alanama $ 43321 § 64481 $ 107802
Alaska 118,195 42982 162,184
American Samoa 1.808 2128 3,986
Arzona 54,332 15,824 £9.8568
Arkansas 129,824 23,654 153,518
Caifornia 65,873 35.064 104,235
Coiorzgo 59,421 21,285 80,708
Connacticut {238) 477 180
Delawere 0 213 213
Distnict of Coumbia 3 0 J
Fioriga 28,501 28,792 77243
Ceorgia 102,208 31,954 134 164
Guam 7,870 8359 16,229
Hawat 48383 13.476 61,854
Idaho 51,3185 2714 £3.898
fncis 57,449 13.567 71078
Indiana 04,836 19,358 73.964
iowe 89,597 33,544 132141
Kansas 183,818 27,437 221.255
Keniugiky 64,302 39,786 104,088
Lousiana 129,232 31,103 180,335
Mang 24 927 7523 32,450
Marviand 1.726 2,348 4072
Massachusetls 863 1,502 2.365
wiicrigan 54,271 8,725 63,9385
Minnesoia 110,440 23,524 133.664
Mississippi 52753 236,373 289728
Missouri 98512 1:1.019 119,530
Moniana 56,751 22,566 72317
Nebraska 76,634 37,655 113,689
Nevads 18,275 9544 27,823
New Hamnshis 7,742 Gi3 8,662
Naw Jersey 1018 0 1038
few Mexico 53,580 11,664 65.224
hews York 38,980 8,694 47 854
Morth Carofira 83,917 24.352 78,269
North Daxoia 72,337 21,°68 G3,505
Nodnern Manena lsiands 552 170 722
Chio 33,569 5104 38873
Okighoma 131,259 13.677 144835
Dregon 60,533 23.422 83955
Pennsylvania 41,703 12,532 54 335
Pueto Pice 0 215,803 215,509
Bhode lslane 0] 31 Jlae
Seutr Caling 81.00 11,467 82472
South Jakata 78,923 16,323 65,248
Tennassee 48,275 7,546 55.821
[exas 217,771 419013 255,685
Utah 19,075 1.372 20,447
Yermont 16,249 12,736 25,064
Virem Isiangs 18945 1,184 21,123
wirginia 26,715 47872 74 587
Washingion: 85,661 11,381 77,042
Hest Virgina 21,995 43,329 85,325
\Wisconsin 108.342 38,015 146,357
Vyoming 35,352 22362 58,714
TOTAL $ 3.052.428 $ 1425357 $ 4,477 785

Ngie: Neambers may nol 800 (e 10 1Guekng
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tnlVverasalt service administrative company

High Cost Program - Disbursements by Incumbent v. Competitive ETC, 2008
(Lnavdited » in thousands)

State ncumbent ETC Competitive ETC Toiai 2008
Aadanz 3 89052 § 18730 . § 107802
Kaska 87 645 74,539 162,184
Amercan Samoa 7K 3313 3 3,086
Anzona 57,388 12,458 69,856
Arkansas a1,823 81,586 . 153518
Cakfomia 104,562 284 104.936
Coicrads 70,402 10,297 . 80,758
Connectiout 180 0 : 180
Deiavare 35 ¢ 213
Disirict of Columbia G 3] Q
Fioriga 62,842 14,451 : 77293
Georga 116,709 23,453 134,764
Guam 7121 9,108 16(‘“9 A
Havgi 28,207 33.653 1659
icann 48,202 7.897 ; 53 898
| Hino 58,357 12,645 71,016
: 65,440 7,563 _ 73,984
| 69,151 64,990 i 133,141
E Kansas 135,791 85.463 221 2597
Keniucky 75277 26.812 104,088
: Lousiana 94,023 56 312 ; 160,335
E Maing 21,202 11,241 : 32,480
; Marvianc 4,072 it} , 4072
% sassachusetts 2,365 d R 2,365
Michigan ; 41,667 22230 j 53,926
: Mirnesola 83,982 49382 133984
: Mississiog: 127 609 181,517 o 288125
: hvtissour _ 92,141 18,390 110,530
: Mortang 66,366 ie 951 2 TN
Nebraska 54,188 58,520 113.0689
: Nevaca 2,0,9?9 6,844 27.823
: New Hampshire 8,380 281 ; 8,662
: Naw Jersey 1018 0 3! 1018
hew Mexico 49,056 15.228 05 224
Vi 44719 2.836 47 654
68314 9.654 78,265
0 47,036 45,469 3 93,505
'&C’*ﬁcs“ viariana isiancs 216 445 72¢
Onig 35,973 G 39,973
Oklanoma 112,857 32,038 144,936
Oregon 59,804 24151 83.955
Perrsyivana 52,805 1,531 g 54 335
Puerto Rico 58,557 156,051 215,808
Rnode Island 3 0 3
Soutr Carolina 85,924 8,549 _ 92,472
Souih Dakota 58,389 36 857 ! 95,246
Tennasses 547186 105 55,821
Texas 223,234 36,45‘e : 258,685
U?ah 20,083 364 20,447
yarmont 22713 o 6,372 ’ 25,084
Wirgin isiands 19,737 1,302 : 21,128
Virgnia o - 59,484 15,103 74,587
Wasi _mn*or 64,379 12,662 7,042
st Virginia 48,114 i7.210 65,325
\isoensin 82,583 63,754 146,357
"‘ey‘,rrm(: 39,426 14288 58714
"TAL $3.063,299 $1 '%84 de $ -'! 57" ?80

Notg: Nambers may nol ads due 1o rounding
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universal service administrative company

Low Income Program . Disbursements by Component, 2008
{unaudited + in thousantis)

ifali Toll Limitation Tetal ; foiat

State Lifeline Link Up Service” 208  1@38-12/34/08
Aghama 8 8267 3 1580  § 425 5 13,282 8 40428
MNaska 21,137 180 74 21401 70889
Amencan Ssmoa o7 1 0 83 i 8:3
Afizora 2143 268 5 21,742 144 474
Ardansas 2,085 158 4 3149 18,955
Caliomiz 209128 12.981 3.897 226.005 _ 3451338
Coloradn 3,143 41 5 3190 33488
Connecticut 4226 &1 4288 4525
Delaware 195 3 1 ig 2059
District of Columiie 539 7 0 846 10245
Fionoa 24,019 385 {131) 24783 & 178,035
Ceorga 11725 1332 # BOXE 85433
Guam 235 18 a 3t 3,083
Hawag 478 4 i 482 : 2913
dehe 3,487 35 9 3521 W 31500
Jinos 8,452 1301 119 9881 _ A2754
frgiana 4882 365 49 5,387 43304
fova 4829 94 33 5005 . . B8
Kansas 2.879 B2 59 3,00 : 2073
Kentucky 7.360 414 %0 7864 51058
Lousena 3 824 575 A4 T 30819
Mare 7,755 307 7 8970 % 91156
Menyiang 623 45 0 62 5228
Massacinselis 10,882 4 i 11887 158,234
Michigan 11,342 767 102 12,204 i 133,236
Minresoia 7621 118 83 7824 57,445
Mississippi 5,840 nar 13 7926 y 35,786
Missoun 7751 179 27 8057 & 44818
Moriana 4,052 47 12 4106 24576
Nebraska 2.297 R 15 2,344 : 19,500
Nevara 2,561 79 3 2,748 : 30857
New Hamoshie 526 1 G 528 2 8837
New Jersey 12847 120 z 1297C : 91,650
New Mo 14,875 167 48 12000 86489
New York 35,701 i7 8 T S 532550
North Carokne , 14,518 440 8 15,040 116,480
North Dakota 3,69 33 10 3402 27 264
Norhem Manara isiangs 125 13 Rl 128 & , 53 5
Gnio 30,480 831 225 31585 ' 270587
Okizhoma 56,250 5921 1,362 83543 246840
Cragon 5544 76 11 5.530 51,03
Pernsytiani 14,267 71 2 14,674 118,928
Pusnc Rico 22.476 880 0 2836 & 100255
Rhooe lstang 3853 7 i 35851 47833
South Carchra 5.044 822 &1 5877 & 31,122
South Dakosa 3544 ] 21 3514 & 4‘ RL
Ternessee 8,800 995 75 0772 "-394
Texas 98314 4,948 656 102518 597,763
Uah 3751 41 : 20 3812 28245
Vermons 3,081 16 2 3 31 5 2
Vg lslands 118 0 9 118 % 503
Vigina 2,389 a8 0 2437 B¢ 24156
iashington 18,125 521 : 25 15,672 ‘& 821
West Virginia 6c4 13 1 858 :
Wisconsn 8,184 722 13 9037
Wymmg 702 ) b TG
TOTAL $ 771,746 $ 39639 § 7810 § 510 205 § 7485438

"Negaive Amounis fesul o over-lgimag SUpooT recowsred alter an audli Note: Nuinbers fray mol ac due fo rourGeg
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aniversal g ersdcie administrative company

Low Income Program - Disbursements by Incumbent v. Competitive ETC, 2008
{unaudited + in thousands)

State incumbent ETC compaﬁtwe ETC Toial 2008
Alaharme $ 5 14 : $ 4 168 js 1 0. 2&4
Haske 3.44% 1?&,0 21 401
American SaTGE 5:3 B 63
Anzons 4,868 16,874 21,742
Ak Kenas 3,149 4] 345
foinia 224,224 1.782 226,005
3,186 24 3160
4,258 28 4,238
198 ¢ 198
648 4] G468
21981 2,301 24,283
13.088 3 13,091
3n 0 311
482 0 o 482
3.344 187 3.5831
5018 1663 2,881
5,304 3 5,367
4200 825 5,025
2,450 543 3,053
6,363 1.501 7864
4013 A30 4443 -
7439 631 8.070
659 { 669
10,887 a 10.887
10,581 1,623 12,204
6,187 1637 7,824 U8
6,153 W67 7920
7,175 882 8,05/
2410 1665 4,106
1807 437 2,344
i\e a8 2,560 as 2,748
Neww Hampsnire 523 4 528
New Jersey 12,970 0 12,970
Naw Mexico 7436 7.594 15,080
- 34,702 1025 35728
14,734 306 15,040
2458 944 3,402
136 ] 138
31,585 4] 31,565
16,104 47 439 63,543
5421 209 5630
14,936 38 14,974
15,004 81352 23,356
3.018 543 3.661
5722 205 5 G2/
Sou "‘ axoa 1,851 1,923 3574
Teniesses 9,348 1,424 10,772
96,525 7,393 103918
3,606 202 3.812
2,878 221 3098
i 0 118
2141 296 2437
10,581 5091 16.672
620 48 568
. 1448 1,587 I 9,037
462 289 731
$ 6750 § 143274 $ 819205

it Mmbers iy hot 20 due 1o vumaing




universal service administrative company

Schools and Libraries Program . Commitments and Disbursements, 2008
funaudited - It; tousands)

_ Fowome Y2008 CuewoaYean 2008 Toru Pascaaw

State i . {ind . Commitments  Disburssments
Commitments Disbursements Commitments Enwbwmﬁ 1/1/98-12/31/68 - 1/1/98-12/31/08

Aagema § 27382 % 5560 § 45253 | $ 7898 § 346470 ¢
Aigske 7,008 | 853 @2 037 20,405 164885
Amergan Samoa g | ¢ i 4850 s v 196818
Afzcna 41827 2,552 A R 50,755 563.123
AErSas 12088 ! 1,851 i 40467 | 3 213756
Californie 211420 | 11,238 291,106 ! 303,587
Coiorado L 18016 ¢ 2317 o624 | 205.001
Connectiout 27812 | 3762 e A013 | 279,308
Deigware 876 2 876 : 13.796
Distact of Colurmpia 1,213 | 28 - 14,145 141 904
Ferda 81977 8.04¢ 100,102 77T 544
Georga . 80823 6.037 , 78,778 ! 733,557
7 8

Cay

Guam 37 | ; 37 20932 8
Hawias 3.269 | 30 3302 41,321 2
ldaho 5,161 | 364 5,638 48.932 E
linig 60,117 2,442 ) 80,285 . 1,044,458 745242
inchana 19,708 946 g 32,216 | 27C,08% 158,808
iowe i2.851 1887 17,445 114 854 77184
Kansas 14519 1576 19470 | 153,742 106 946
Kentucky 23775 | 2335 . 35629 364,127 235 501
Lousiane 32511 7034 i 48 89S 457 058G 345618
tdane 5252 | 244 0 5608 67,338 45813
Mearyiand 9,471 682 S hanh 197 143 3401
Massacnusels 23915 1 2804 o 26424 ; 356,913 2057
Michigan 35710 ¢ 5675 40087 | 537385 43208
Mirnasota 18,943 1.070 22493 257,855 185,
Aisssssinn 28,922 3410 w5074 374,165 256
Missoun 280,662 | 2,394 ; 31,365 | 415577
Mortana 4168 | 917 4,160 | 42 490

Nahraska 8,925 | 1,642 10,224 . 82.167

Nevada 5018 189 e 11708 | 55 780

Naw Hampsnra 2841 48 P 3245 | 21.457

New Jersey 40000 | 1610 47,359 | 528,366
New Maxico 20,328 | 1,281 s a3,134 | 443,267
News Yok 343799 . 16874 G -908,701 i 3321029
ot Caroéng 45,296 8013 61,883 ! 494 088
Norh Cakoiz 4,035 1,388 . 4345 | 38,838
Nortnern Manana Isiands 783 . 3 N 11.462
(hio 52,278 53 Fioh il 768 855

=~ N
a0
(%]
N

Okighoma 38,967

1564 EX LR 445,242
Oragon 5,720 4 911 17,288 | 144 GB8
Pennsyivana 82767 | 7610 92579 | 78532
Pueric Rieo 6,841 | 1,375 16,346 ! 275,388
Rrode isiend 5977 08 6523 | 71,244 52 568
Seuth Carpina 10,575 1,070 221303 | 458803 JiT 878
Souin Dakola 4508 | 652 : 4,822 - 53918 34,455
Ternessee 67420 . §.42¢ . Bgoa4 ! 565,148
Texas 140,897 - 9,561 256,353 2,365,440

Utah 18397 73 19540 | 128,665

Vermont 1984 0 2,045 | 19712 12,26
Virgin Islands 816 216 9,296 | 38 257 (3,481
Virginia 30,148 1,334 g 02310 ¢ 304,774 229180
Vyaehinglon 20,150 | 1,022 .. 24825 ¢ 282214 174870
West Virgiria 12.558 | 846, 15,850 105474 23,683
Wisconsin 13,793 6i7 Ao 1499 | 278,797 208289
Wyoming 1,928 263 : 2136 | 3 34,535 | 22.388
P e B A N N A e AR B D 5NN S AN S AN T e AR SN S AR
TOTAI $1,808.086 ' $150.830 $2.582,652 | $1,758845 323731470 | $15.057353

Nove Funang vear gala 35 of 1 2/31/0008 Fundig vear 2008 July | 2008-Juie B0 2008 Numibers mav 1l 867 e 1 roundieg
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aniversatdi service administrative company

Schools and Libraries Program - Funding Year 2008 Statistics

Cch I s T R tennla
{LR3UONET + W1 H0USanas;

Discount  Telecom internet  internal | Basic Total % of Total
Band  Services = Access Gonnections ' Maintenance  Dollars

Z0-—29%

3 2072 18 627 L =8 25849 ).15%
30-39% - | 634 992 | 1328 D41%

intermai Connections .
A0—40% : SH 408 o3pads : 190,061 —
and Basic Mainienance
- I- 1155 : 26,932 i Wi, Fop "y : A Ay AR 't Py
HmER e RoYas 26,932 - | were ohiy funded at the 142461 7.88%

anos

W [aa! anet abn s
80% level and above

L P s o § i 0 ol Sy
TO—73% 226,246 73068 i ! 289314 i655%
85—-8%% H 317406 i 69,907 5 21,001 & 9,283 417,597 23.10%
S0% | g6.521 | 30222 = 408,978 58,796 | 594,458 32.88%

TOTAL PR ADanA0T TR Pe0408 8 aMmTIn 8 sa07o I3 1EOBOGS | OOO0N

- % of Total
Sehool /Uibrary Corstrtiom i 743 R o 2.36% : 7.72%

D ahan] Ticknrt 10 1A% 4 1 A0 BNG - ala B gtatl) 3 IOy
Sehool District 19,143 p R B e K o T 60.892% Oz 84

R : = AR ¢ 445y pg 29 200, B 239
Schegl 7,356 § 112,669 23.39% 6.23%
Library ilmary Co 4,186 & 66,249 1332% 3.66%

Jaes b Sieos0os 106.00% o atoo0s




univervsal service adminisirative Som pany

Rural Health Care Program - Commitments and Disbursements, 2008
{unaudited - In thousands)

COMMITHMERTS ; a:sauas t#EEHS

State Galendar  Iotal - (alendar otal
?sar?.!ms wgaqzmm Year 2698 mms-izmm

Aizbama $§ 1©2 s 843 04 $ JJﬁ
Alasia 25.128 i 152,280 28,883 131,172
Amencan Samoa 108 108 108 ' . D‘S
Adzora 1310 9,663 A . 7363
Ackansas > Sl 1,177 e 198 763
Catforma 710 3517 B4 2913
Coicrage 81 | 1122 5 ] 101
Connectous 0 9. 0 i
Deiane € 0 G 8] J
Disinct of Columpa 0 0 i ¥
Horide 33 1,980 27¢C 208
Geoiga 1,002 3165 1164 2502
Guam 13 | 104 0 i
Hawaii 128 2048 =011 1.800
Igaho 187 1104 g 195 Sd4
Hlincis 671 3,091 o7k 2398
Indiara 402 ¢ 1,282 ; 427 77
iowa 376 2.077 2 328 ! 1,785
Kansas 222 | 2.043 524 ' 2,843
Keniucky 458 3.268 e 2,83
Lousiana 53 1,029 . of 88t
hare 14 204 57 : P62
Maiyiznd [ T 0 g )
Massachugat: 129 224 £ 00 219
Michigan 1,041 5,049 747 4834
hinnesota 1846 9,871 1977 8,957
hississiog 185 G55 189 914
bissouri 293¢ 1,088 162 780
Moniana 817 4,520 i 4 311
Nebraska 1.353 8,136 _ 2058 : 7,684
Nevada 81 497 32 i 580
few Hamgpshire q. 73 Sl ) i
New Jersey g 0 3, a
New Mexico 325 2,567 ROU 2319
New York 85 403 81 : 319
Norh Cerolina 209 1,515 160 1,358
Nerin Dakola 394 4,562 424 4,085
MNartharn Masana lslands 4 1 5 : 0 Bt
Otig 177 1,082 125 846
{Oxiahoma 297 1,328 heen 10 : 825
Cragon 138 474 125 357
Banswivana 122 448 2 9 d 334
Buero Reo S T 0 S 7 o
Bhode Island oo 0 0 0
Sauh Caroina 1 279 5 : 218
Scutn Dakora gt 5,180 AT : 4801
iennessee 321 995 402 : 871
Texas 264 3.090 : 235 2,052
Litan 09 3,721 v 503 3,255
Vermonit 6 4Gz : T 380
Virgin isiancs _ g i 588 : 51 H04
Virgina 352 2,997 Lo o T4 2318
Wasmingion 64 655 : 74 : 547
West Virgiria 140 763 i 155 ; 652
mscmsin 3,414 11,467 S0k i 8276
Wyoming 188 1077 205 _ aca

B T 4081 s 266167 $49458 & 200946

Note There were G funaing commirments 1 Funaing Year 2008 Liwy 1 2Z08-June ) 2000} as of Dergmbe: 57 2008 Nuwipers may 20l 243 g 10 Guigiig

5%
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* Universal Service F‘und Disbursements by Pregram Calendar Year 2008

State

Amansan Samca
r{l 2052
f% 4?%3

Cole fafm
Conneciod
Delaware

Disirict of Cowmba

Marviand
Massacnusetis
‘v '}"r[g(:

NEDIESKS

Nﬁ‘f&(}a

New Hampshie
New Jassey
New Mexico
hewy Ve
Noan Caroura
Norin Dascla

themn Mariana lsiands

Por'q@ hanis

)t" fi] R
Brode isma'
SouEn Caroina
Soutn Daketa
Tennessee
Texas

Wiscoh -S r
W "_.r""’i ng

CTOTAL BY PROGRAM

104,938
86 706
80

144 935
83,9565
54, 235
215,600
3
092,472
Gh,246
55.821
?H3.685
20 487
28,084
21126
74587
77,042
552 25
146,257
58714

4477785 |

Fe Nomibers (Mgy 500 200 QUE 10 10Eg

(unaugiied - In thousands)
low | Rural Schools &
income | HealthCare . thranes
'§ 10282 1§ 04 . $ 3?898 i
L 21401 28883 | 20405
63 108 0 |
21747 1087 50,755
2,149 128 | 27.567 |
226,005 647 | 230214 ¢
2160 b - 16,57¢ |
4,288 g 27152 |
198 0 (736
646 ¢ . 21408
24,283 271G i 76306 |
13,09 1164 :  80.230
31 G ¢ 1021
482 211 2083
3531 195 4482
9.681 578 96.473 ¢
5,297 427 25694 ¢
5.025 328 10,869
3,003 24 14,262
884 262 ¢ 20611 -
4,443 Y 38242 |
8070 | 57 5,448
869 0! 17327 |
10.687 130 - 23.085
12.204 742 51 287
7824 1877 22,315
7,920 150 | 25,615
8,057 B2 | 17142 -
4,108 680 . 347 i
2344 2058 9.248
2748 32 3.972
528 g i.8619
12,970 G i 42185
15.080 500 | 32.584 |
35.726 61 144891 .
15,040 80 | 52.882
3.402 424 4480 ¢
138 L G2 |
31,585 i g5 86,602
83,543 i o 36,070 |
5,630 125 10,454 |
14,674 . 91 56172
23.336 & 4 459
3.661 | H 5021 |
5.927 B | 23.385 |
3.574 1484 | §,231
10772 402 41148
3018 235 147818 |
3.812 4% 12 744 ¢
3.089 a7 1,440
1ng 51 i 5140
2437 ! 743 27813 |
16,672 74 25,524
568 b5 a8
9,037 3613 | 21367
731 205 3768 .
$ 8 ‘3295 $ 49L58 5 ‘I f598!15

$ 156.086
232,872
4157

143 445
184,362
551.803
100,611

31620

2.151
22,049
178,153
208,648
17,581
64 638
62,107

TTT4G

105512
148163
239,143
141,845
203,077
46.024
22.068
36,468
128.230
166,080
322.82%
135,851
87575
127338
34,576
11 (069
56.172
113,393
228.333
146,351
101.811
1,621
138,335
247639
100,164
124,572
243 418
8.713
121782
108,235
168143
511,755
37505
33.763
26,438
108,581
119,312
75,548
9TTs
52,818

$7‘36 384

 Toial2008  Total AN nms
'B;shumems ; m&

$ 1 '*Od 134
1,472,280
34,245
1,186,765
1,348,666
5,078,567
929‘88.’ ..'.
280,897
18,227

83381 *

1464816
1745006
105,114
260,725
573932

1386170

.,.4(] 065 a

885,569

460 674

1,102,308
1,172,807
2,208,547
1031805
761,078 -
£62,145
228, 853 :
123,748
486,380

805,801~

3015319

1,145,385
622,765
d: 27-.'-'

1,146,847 o
1,639,400

§40,228
1,217,840
”712‘36..
10122358
1,004 857

656,836

94?,845____
4431126

316,819

328716

360,297

930,875
1152.781

748,011

1328182

52C' 92"":




Other Confractuai Services

{ther Contractial Services

Bepaton o

a8SIynad [0 serecs
SENIR EOpETS) RO
paoness tnal ackvel
SUgpON il Grisms
S Fiersiale elecor
rovges A5PS ang v ComAain

-FCC OIG USF Audits

e il

=y -
ompstit

RHC-SL Operational Support Seivinss Competitive big

Doliar Range:

s fahie Gresen's conmact sxpanoires pver §1.m
lenptar year 2008, m gesoRnmag oioe o 826
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oniversal servive administrative company

USAC's Beoard of Directors - 2008

Members ot the USAC Board ot Directors are selected by the Chairman ot the
FCC from nominations made by constituent groups who are USF stakeholders.
Board members represent the telecommunications and information services
industry, state telecommunications regulators, consumer advocates, low-income
consumers, rural health care providers, schools, and libraries. The USAC
Board of Directors has five standing committees: Audit Cormmittee, Executive
Committee, High Cost and Low Income Committee, Rural Health Care
Commuttee, and Schools and Libraries Committee.

D. MICHAEL ANDERSON
Vice Fresident.
External Aftans and Marketing
lowa leiecornmunications Services, Inc
Newton, 1A

SCOTT BARASI
Acting Cliinf Fxecutive Olcer
Universal Service
Ademirestrative Compary
Washinglon O

AxNe CoBov Lz
Commyssionat
Nebraska Fubiic Sarvice Commussian
Liicoin, ML

Dr.ANNE L. Bryanr
Exocutve Dioctor
Natonal Sehool Boards Azsociaiion
Alexandng, VA

ANy L Canieryr,
City Libearian
Natonal City Public Library
Natanal City, CA

JOSFPI GILLAN
Consullarit
(Gian Associates
Daviona Besch 11

JAMES JACKSON
Yier-Char, USAL Beard nf Direclors

Arduiatory Atiorney
Genaral Commumcalions, ine
Anchorae. AK

Wane RoJodrNer
Treasurer, USAC Board of Direclors

Sorvor Uounsel
Maine Fublic Advocat Offce
Hallowel, Mt

hevin N Josti
Frmcipal
The Joseph Groun LLO
Washington OC

RN KNow LS
Fxetutve Direclor Reguiatory Affairs
XC Communicalions
Salt Lake Ciiv, UT

Proes KRvGrL, MDD,
Secretary, USAC Board of Direclurs

Asaooate Vice Chancatior
Heaith Sciericess Division
East Caroima University

Greenvillo NC

Jorr LuBis
Vice Prosiden!
Ai&T e
Washiglor. DC

Dwin B MeCL e
Progent and CLO
US Infernei Indusive Assocanon
Alaxanang, VA

Jav FLoSaNpurs, MDD,
Fresiden! and CED
The Giohal Telemedicino G
Mol ean WA

LLEE SCIROBDER
Vice Presigont
Gavernment & Regulalory Stategy
Cablevision Sysioms Corpotakon
Beitipage. NY

PHYLLIS 5IMON
Feared
Conway School Mistrict
Conway, AR

[, Brian L. 'Tarsorr
Charrmnan, USAC Board of Direclors

Lyecutve Direclor
Assocution of Educational
Service Agencies
Artnptons, VA
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The

Universal Service
Administrative

Company (USAC)
is an independent,
not-for-profit
corporation overseen
by the Federal
Communications
Commission that
administers the
Universal Service
Fund and the USF
support programs,
which are dedicated
to ensuring that all
Americans receive
the benefits of
affordable and
efficient access to
telecommunications and
information services.
Working closely with
the FCC and our
stakeholders, USAC
has helped make
universal service
possible.

For more
information, go to
WWW.usac.org





